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THY:: MA~T'F'R: Mr. Odam, 

MR. ODAM: Yeo., !"fr. 

narP~ t.n vo forwar~' 

MR. MITCHF.LL: YPo., Vnur Honnr. 

T~F MASTF.R: Mr. C~At~-~. I want thP 

wa!" nff t~p r~cnrd t~'o. mnrnin~. it wAo. 

tP~tfmonv! that WP ~111 nnt takP tP!"timony 

rfatr t~P timP, and thP Mao.ter ~oPs not 

rono.f~Pr that comln~ down fnr two days of 

I rln un~Pro.t~n~. Mr. Mitc~Pll, t~At ynu 

~~orovP t~~t schedulP snd aonrPrf~te lt, 1~ 

thl'lt rfl"l,t? 

MR. 'fiTCH"ELL: I surP do, Your Hnnor, 

t~at ic; f•nP. 

THE '\.fAS TF.R: And Mr. Odam you l,avP no 

objectfnn to it, dn you' 
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~. ODAM: No, ~~r. th~ nnly thin~ 

hon~fu11v wP ~•11. 

T'iE "tASTER: W~ll, ,.,,. llrP not fort>-

clo!led. 

THt MASTER: Wp clln rPconstdPr. 

MR. ODAM: But othPr thAn thllt obit>c-

tton 

THE MASTER: But evPn tf wp ArP not 

throu~h with t~P Pvidt>nce, that ts the 

MR. ODAM: YPs, ~ir. 

TqE MASTER: Comin~ down for two day!! 

of tP!Itfmony ~tth thP v~ry r~al nossfbil{ty 

that thP s~nt~nctn~ h~artn~ may not b~ --

f. t may not Pnd Monday. 

MR. ODAM: Ye~. ~tr. 

It could 20 ovPr tnto 

Tuesday and we hliVP really wast~d money if 

w~ do that. 

MR. ODAM: Yt>s, ~ir. 

THE MASTER: Your nP"l!'t w~tness iR Mr. 
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you ~~t ~r. CoulinP ol~~~~? 

MR. OOAM: BPfor~ ~~ RPt him --

T'fF. MASTER: A 11 rf.$>ht, Mr. Odam. 

MR. ODA~: Your Honor, A~ thP Court 

thAt w~rP -- me had orf~ina1 rnof~~ of thP 

mfth rP~OPCt to thP chPrks. and as I rPcall 

tt that If Mr. MP~k werP hPrP, he would tPstff 

and thPy werP not availablP in t~P county 

auditor's audit and thPy rPlatPd to cprtain 

claim ;ackPts and I bf>li_PVE' th~ rtacord yps-

terday wfll rPflect t~at t~P claim 1ack~ts 

wer~ E-64, R-67, E-71, F.-81 and E-91. 

have been mark~d for idPntffiratfon as follows 

claim 1ackPt E-64 and E-68 Is a ch~ck, a 

E-67, and E-74 is a rony nf a chPck which 

r~latPs to claim 1ackPt E-71. E-80 is a 

I• 
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;~cket E-81 and F.-94 ta a cony of a ch~ck 

I'm not ~UrP the record would reflect 

re~ult of YPRterday, And I would likP to 

offer thoAe into evidence nurAuant to t~at 

MR. MITCHELL: Thf' ·<AmP ob1ection, Your 

Hnnor, that {A ~earAay, no -- no nrooer 

authPnt~catinn. 

T~E MASTER: F.ycu~e me, I didn't hear 

t~llt. 

MR. MITCHELL: It would be hear~ay --

~t ~oulrl be hParAay, authentication and, of 

course, our ba~ic obiectfonA, Your Honor, 

that we nrrviously had, non-1udfc~a1 canacfty, 

bPyond the Acone of the formal notice ~nd 

thP or{~fnal notice and then, of cour~e. 

beyond thP term. 

THE MASTER: Mr. Odam, I do nnt -- my 

notes do not ref1Pct t~ose Eyhfhft numbers 

11t all. I take ft theae ~erP fnRtruments 

marked the ot~er day and I don't rPflect 

any reference to them. Am I correct fn that 

om{~!l! fon? 
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MR. ODAM: T~~t'~ corrPrt, t~P onlv 

MR. MITC'IELL: In arl~ftinn, Your Hnnor, 

I not only don't rpflPrt t~Pm, nor havP I 

on ~PPk'~ ~tfnulatton from about, I would ~ay, 

6R -- no, I'm ~orry, about 91 ~nd forward, I 

h~vpn't PY~mfnpd thosp othPr than the fact 

that ~r. MPek Ratd thRt thP~P comP out of 

my ftlP, so I don't w~nt thP rPcord to 

to look at thP endorsempnt~ nr in dPtafl at 

mPntton~>d, 

THE MASTER: I am not sure r undPr~t~nd 

the stfnulatfon with resnert tn thP~P ronfPs, 
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MR. ODAM: 

hAVP 8 rony ~f thP ~Rily --

THF. '.fAS TFR : I ~nn't hnvP it, but thnt 

You t~ink thP ~tinulntfon 

thP ori~inRJ R~d roul~ not f'nd it? 

"fR. ODAM: 

nn nlllpP 164R. 

tfon nrP~unnnsP~ a btlRttPral unrlPr~t111nrlin2. 

I ,,,'f 11 nn t 

stinulatP, Your Honor, thAt thP~P coniP~ nrP 

or his cURtorliRnshin, cPrtAinly nnt tn 

tri22Pr thP nroof by -- nf th~sP chPcks by 
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fn thr TPcord And I ~111 ~fmnlv look At ft. 

Can ynu P.~t ft for mp~ 

THE MASTER: Mr. Odam, the problem I 

have is I do not find in the daily copy 

transcript where there is a stipulation Mr. 

Meek would testify this is a correct 

photocopy of a check that he knew existed, 

but cannot find. 

MR. ODAM: All right, sir, 

THE MASTER: Nqw, the statute divides 

in substance that mechanically reproduced 

copies, such as Xerox or whatever, are 

admissible when the original is shown to be 

unavailable, but doesn't this have to be 

authenticated that this ts a copy? 

MR. ODAM: Sir, it says, produce the 

original or account for its absence, so it 

is my understanding that if Mr. Meek were 

to testify, I don•t know where the origlnal 

copies are, that this, therefore, would trigger 

the admissibility of a machinP reproduced 

copy. 
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'I'HE MASTER: But he doesn't have to say 

this is a copy or it? 

MR. ODAM: I don't believe so. 

MR. MITCHELL: May I address myself 

to this? 

THE MASTER: Sure. 

MR. MITCHELL: Mr. Meek says he won't 

ever have them, he is not supposed to have 

them. I say they ought to call Mr. Solis, 

the treasurer, and have him make an 

examination an~ ir he has the originals, 

rine, but if he doesn't, then he is able 

to bring hi~ testimony within that statute. 

I recall asking Mr. Meek that very question 

and I said the original checks should have 

been in that jacket and everybody pointed 

out to me the jackets should not contain 

the checks, so --

THE MASTER: Well, I don't know that I 

agree with that or disagree with it. I 

think there are a number of ways the original 

can be found to be missing, but I would think 

that someone would have to say this is a copy 

MR. ODAM: Well, we will produce today 

the bank orrlcer from the First State Bank 
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who made these copies and have him identify 

that he made these for that purpose and 

that will solve that problem. 

MR. MITCHELL: Now, John, I am going to 

object if the bank officer is not the man 

that actually made the reproduction and can't 

testify --

THE MASTER: Well, the stipulation has 

triggered the statute. I simply feel that 

someone has to say this is a copy made by 

some mechanic~: process. 

You may call your witness. 

MR. ODAM: we will recall Mr. Rudolfo 

Coultng. 

FURTHER EXAMINATION 

BY MR. ODAM: 

Q Mr. Couling, you are the same witness that 

testified yesterday? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q And the Court admonished you you were under oath 

and still are today? 

A Yes, sir. 
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Q Mr. Couling, you made a statement, I believe, 

2 yesterday, in the record that you set up, along 

3 with Ramiro Carrillo, the Benavides Implement 

4 and Hardware Store? 

s A Yes, sir. 

6 Q And you and he were partners in that? 

7 A Yes. 

a f./. You made a statement yesterda~ that-- and we came 

9 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

IS 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

2S 

to an objection and I am sure we will today, but 

you said J• P. Carrillo was a silent partner? 

MR. MITCRFT~L: Yes, I would object and 

we would object to his leading his own 

witness in this matter. 

MR. ODAM: At this time, Your Honor, 

and we might excuse the witness, because I 

would like to discuss that point. 

THE MASTER: Would you mind walkir1g out 

again, Mr. Couling. 

MR. ODAM: Your Honor, I do not have 

prepa2d a formal, legal written brief, but 

I would like to make our views known for 

the record of hearsay and the exception to 

the hearsay being a declaration against 

interest exception to a witness 1 pecuniary 

or proprietary interests. 
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If there are exceptions, they are 

triggered when one who made the statement 

is unavailable. We think the law is clear 

that Mr. Ramiro Carrillo is unavailable and 

the luw is, as we know, may be admitted if 

they meet the requirementsof the declaration 

against interests. 

Statements by a third party may 

propery be admitted into evidence if they 

meet the requirements of the declarations 

against interc· ~s exception to the hearsay 

rule. The exception may generally be stated 

to the fact that the declarations of a 

person, since deceased or unavailable at 

the time of trial, opposed to his pecuniary 

or proprietary interests, are admissible, 

provided he was in a position to know of 

the matters stated and had no probable 

motive to misrepresent the facts. For this, 

I cite 2 McCormick and Ray, Texas Law of 

Evidence, 1001, 1003; and also, McCormick and 

Ray, Law of Evidence, 253 and Duncan v. Smith 

393 S.W.2d 798, 803. (Texas Supreme Court 

One can argue that a witness who invokes 
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his privilege against self-incrimination 

should be regarded as unavailable within the 

meaning of the Rule, One state has so held 

for decades, and this is cited in Sutter v. 

Easterly, 354 Mo. 282, 189 S,W,2d 284 (1945). 

Moreover, the commentators support 

this view, and again ai te 2 McCormick and Ray ,
1 

Texas Law of Evidence, 1003, Significantly, 

a Texas Court has expressly approved this 

result in dicta. Cited is Liberty Mutual 

Insurance Comp: -y v. Heard and Jones Drugstores, 

Inc,, 446 S,W.2d 911, 913 (Texas Civil 

Appeals -Amarillo, 1969, no writ,) 

Indeed, the trend in Texas is to 

expand the admissibility of declarations 

against interest to situations where the 

declarant is for all practical purposes 

unavailable. For this I cite Brown v. Brown, 

520 :.W.2d 571, 578 (Texas Civil Appeals -

Houston, 14th District, 1975, no writ) and 

note the authorities cited therein. 

As far as the unavailability, once 

the unavailability requisite is satisfied, 

the qu~stion becomes whether the declaration 

states facts against the pecuniary or 
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proprietary interests of the declarant. 

Classically, such declarations involve 

acknowledgerrent of an indebtedness or have 

a limitation on one•s ownership of property. 

However, Courts have extended the scope of 

statements against pecuniary interest to 

include the acknowledsment of facts giving 

rise to civil liability. McCormick, Law of 

Evidence, 254. In Texas, facts adversely 

affecting the declarant~ civil liability or 

recovery are c~-sidered against his pecuniary 

interest, Duncan v. Smith, 393 S.W.2d 798 

and also Jewell v. El Paso Electric Company, 

47 s.w.2d 329, 330. 

Though these Texas cases involve 

declarations by persona who were originally 

parti~s to the suits in which the statements 

were ndmitted, the opinions are expressly 

baaed on the declaration against interest 

exception and support the limited proposition 

that statements of facts adversely affecting 

the declarant's civil liability are against 

his pecuniary inte•t. 

Once the situation of the 

1ndlcat1on of the Fifty Amendment belng 

llt.HII:\M & .'\SSOUA I ~ <; 
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invoked, the invocation of the privilege 

against self-incrimination renders the i 

witness unavailable; that former declarations! 

which stated facts giving rise to civil 

liability were against the witness 1 pecuniary 

interest; and that such declarations are, 

therefore, admissible in the present 

proceeding pursuant to the declarations 

against interest exception to the hearsay 

rule. 

We ~~-·lld submit that statements 

we would want in by way of this witness, wh 

Ramtro Carrillo stated against him, would be 

against his pecuniary interests; that they 

would show civil liability on the part of 

Ramiro Carrillo. 

THE MASTER: What sort of statements 

are you going to get out of thts witness? 

MR. ODAM: The statements would be 

statements along the lines where Ramiro 

Carrillo -- to show whether he acted alone 

or with o. P. Carrillo to convert the money 

of Duval County. If it were brought by the 

terms of conversion to Ramiro to his own 

personal use and benefit. 
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THE MASTER: So Ramiro Carrillo says 

to Mr. Couling what? 

MR. ODAM: Well, in this case, he would 

state that o. P. Carrillo is a silent 

partner in the Benavides lmplement and 

Hardware Store. That would tend to show in 

that one instance that --

THE MASTER: Mr. Mitchell, counsel is 

making an argument, but I know you have to 

confer, so do it quietly. 

MR. MITCqPLL: I don't know what his 

argument is against. 

THE MASTER: Well, you are not 

listening. 

MR. MITCHELL: On a hearsay objection, 

I am sorry, I do appear to be distracted,~ 

and the witnesR testified under oath that he 

didn't have a partner a few months back. 

I don't see an admission, so, therefore, I 

move to strike his testimony, and further, 

I object on the matter of hearsay. 

THE MASTER: Well,now, the declaration 

against interest is that a witness, including 

a non-party witness who makes an out-of-court 

declaration, is admissible to prove the truth 
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MR. ODAM: And the witness that you are 

referring to there would be Ramiro Carrillo? 

THE MASTER: No, let's see, I didn't 

state that well. It is not a witness, it 

is a person who makes a statement to a witnes • 

MR. ODAM: Correct. 

THE MASTER: That is contrary to his 

pecuniary interest. 

MR. ODAM: That is correct. 

THE MASTER: That witness' testimony 

as to what tnt person states to him 

was admissible if the statement is 

contrary to tha pecuniary interest of the 

person to whom the witness talked. 

MR. ODAM: Yes, sir, and I m;ght add, 

I asked about, and it was raised on this 

question, about silent partners. 

Mr. Ra~o Carrillo's statement 

to Mr. Joulingwould be statements we would 

think would show the entire scheme of how 

the money was going from the Benavides 

Implement and Hardware, to and from the 

county, and further, to o. P. Carrillo. 

The entire scheme of the things by way of 

the statements made by Ramiro Carrillo, 

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES 
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which gives rise to civil liability in that 

he, himself, participated in the conversion 

of that and other moneys from the County of 

Duval. 
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THE "fASTER: Do you have the ~ectfon~ 

of McCormick snd Ray? 

MR. ODAM: Yes, ~ir, 1001 and 100~ on 

"f>t"Unisry. 

THF. MASTER: Tl-tert> ~s :· 'Denc'!.l 1-terP at 

MR. ODAM: It ~robably doe~. but that 

f~ for AnothPr 'Dnint. 

TqE MASTE~; All ripht, you want me to 

SI'IVP it? 

MR. ODAM: Ye~. the best evidence rule 

on that ~A~e. ve~, I'm ~urP it does. 

THE MASTER: Mr. O~am, I thfnk thiR i~ 

an inst~nce where the Court would have to 

You wnul~ have to nut 

on the testimony in connection with a bill 

anyway. 

MR. ODAM: Yes, ~d.r. 

THE MASTER: Brfn, fn Mr. Coul{n~, 'Dle8SP 

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES 
COURT REPORTERS 

717 ANTELOPE • GUARANTY BANK PLAZA 
CORPUS CHRISTl. TEXAS 7840t 



2 

3 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

2S 

169 

EXAMINATION CONTINUED 

BY MR, ODAM: 

Q Mr. Coulin~. I bPlfeve you st~ted ye~terday t~at 

at one ~oint. when we wPre di~cus~in~ how thP 

Ben~vfdes ImnlPment 11nd HardwarP wa~ !'let un, you 

etatPd that Ramfr~ Carrillo tn1d ;ou t~at 0. P. 

Carrillo was to he a silent DartnPr, t~ thst cor-

rPct' 

A Ye'f, !'ltr. 

0 I~ that what he stateJ to you? 

A Ye~, •dr. 

MR. MITCHELL: Pardon me, Jud~e. Now, 

I don't want to waive anythin~. I understoocl 

t~at I have a conttnutn, ob1ection to all of 

this as befn~ teadin~ and hearsay and there 

i~ no connection where 0. P. Carrillo ~s 

concerned. 

Tij! MASTER: Wrll, 11nd rf,ht now I am 

in one of those situ8tions ~here I think I 

havP to hear the evidPncP in order to rule 

on the ob1Pction. 

MR. MITCqELL: RtRht, well that's all 

ri,ht, Jud~P, I'm not ~uarreltn~ with the 

Court's Drocedure. 
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'rHE MASTF.R: That i"' ffnP. 

MR. MITCHELL: M~y I add nne more, Aur• 

uri~e, movP for unstuonemPnt and continuance! 

that thPy could not makP their cons~iracy 

w~tlk yPsterday. 

ThP Cnurt ~'!truck that c;ecnn~ amendE>d 

n~tfcp and thPy havE> now fltnuPd back into 

I am lu~t as c;urnrisE>d as 

I was yPRter~ay with them tryin~ to ~o the 

cnnso~racy route. 

Q (By Mr. Odam:) Mr. Cnultn~. •n addition to that 

statemPnt, with resnPct to the silent nartner, 

fs it your te!'ltfmony that Mr. R.t~mi.ro C.trr"~llo 

madP that statement to you about 0. P. being a 

Rflent nartner in Benavides Imulement and Hard-

A Yes, !'dr. 

Q In addition to that, did Ramirn Carrillo at any 

time makP a statPmPnt tn you wfth rPsuect to mak-

in~ out chrckA from BPnavtdes Imulement and Hard-

ware to the benefit of 0. P. Carrillo? 

A v.('~, "".r. 
Q And could you e~ulatn to the Cour~ what thosP 

c;tatements wPre that Ramfrn Carrillo made to ynu' 
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from Precinct 2, ft had tn ~o to 0. P. Carrillo. 

THE ~STER: E~cuse mP, Mr. Odam, how 

fs that a declaration av.atn~t Mr. Ramfro 

Carrillo's oecuniary interPst1 

MR, ODAM: Your Honor, t~P way that 

that would be a declaration aP.afnst his own 

oecuniary interest ~·ould be &~'~ follows: That 

it would ~'fvp rtse to the c'lv'f.l liabiltty on 

thP oart, {n a civil lawsuit, not in this 

cePdtnv. but in a civfl law~utt if brou~h by 

the county of Duval ag8{nst Ramtro Carrillo 

'fn consoirin~ to convert the money from the 

Duval County for ~oods ~nd services that were 

As the ~estfmony has alrP.ady fnd{catP.d 

by Mr. Gonzalel!! 1 S tf'st{mony t..,e ot~er day, 

there was no work donP on those chP.cks for 

Precinct 2, that went into the county. The 

county checks went into --

MR. MITCHELL: Excuse mP., Your Honor, 

oardon mP, Jud~e. I rP.alfzP.d the Court askPd 

thfs ~uPstton, but thfs man •s on the w'ltnP.ss 

qtand and I would ob1Pct to any kind of a 
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I wouldn't ~ant to di~cuR~ ft fn front nf 

h1m, if ft vinlatps th~ rulr, Jud~~. 

T 1F M.AS TER: 

echo fn th~ room, ft ~eem~ to m~. 

MR. HAYNES: I aoolo~~ ~' , Your Hflnor, 

and admit to befn~ t~P echn. 

THF. MASTF:'R: All ri~ht, th~t i~ a 

I wf.ll cont1.nup 

hearin~ the rvtdence and withhold my rulinP. 

MR. ODAM: All riJ!ht, 

MR. MITC!lELL: M~ty I l,avp l,~m on voi.r 

~o I could obiect morP intelli~Pntly if 

nntnllbll". 

THE MASTER: Wrll, YP!'I, I ,.,_dll lf"t ynu 

takf" him on votr dirf", ~ltl,ou~l, tht~ i~ 

rl~ht now a bill. 

M"R. ~ITC TELL: I under~tand. 
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VOIR DIRE EXAMINATIQ~ 

BY "'R. MITCHELL: 

0 Mr. Coultn~. w~Pn ~id you hAVP t~i~ conv~r~Ation 

th~t you nrP t~stffyin~ to unrl~r oath with Ramiro 

Cnrrn lo" 

A Thn t wAS on thP PS rl y 'DSrt of May of 1971. 

A No, "~r. 

0 And ~~ere wa~ th~ conver~atton he1d7 

A I ~nn't know ff tt wAs fn my car or at thP tax 

office. 

0 Rut your t~qtfmony un~er oath is that t~ere wa~ 

a oArtnershi'D hy reason of thAt convers~on 

between you An~ Ramtro Carrillo and as you und~r-

"tand Jud~e 0. P. CArrillo" 

Q All riP-~t And wa" it --

THE MASTER: No, wn-lt, vou qafd a con-

ver"a~fon betw~en him and RAmirn Cnrrtllo 

And JudPP 0. P. Carrillo" 

MR. ~ITCHELL: No, a nartnf'r"h"n. 

THE MASTER: I'm sorry. 
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und~r oAth ~~ ~ r~eu1t of thAt ~~y. 1971, conv~r-

A 

0 I w~nt it rlParly und~r~tood th~t you Rr~ t~~ttfy-

fnp und~r oath h~rP without any ambiJ!ulty and ~ny 

mPncinl'> M111y of 71, to dl'lt~. in th · B~navirfps 

ef. r. 

THE ~STER: All ri~ht, you mAy nrocP~d 

Mr. Orl111m. 

EXAM'NATION CONTINUED 

BY MR, ODAM: 

0 ~r. Coulfn~. l'llon9 thP ~AmP lfnp vou mpntfon~d 

thP othpr rll'ly, that thPre wAs a notP for three 

thou~and dollar~. fq that corrPct? 

0 !n thP Ftr~t Stl'ltP BAnk in San Df.p~o? 
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il 
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!I 4 

A R~mtro Carrftlo a~~ mys~tf. ~fr. 

I.V 7 7 · 

5 oartles? 

6 

7 I 
I 

and they ~rrr ~12nE"d by my~etf ~n~ Ramtro Carrtllo. 

8 I I, Q All rt2ht, ~nd when Mr. Ramtrn C~rrt11o made thr 
II 

9 I' ~tatP.ment~ to you about ~ettin2 uo t~P store. thiq 

10 I 
I 

~licr,htly differrnt, I don't kno"' ff {t occurrf"cl 

II 
I 
'I 

II 
at thE" same timE" or ,..,t, but you tE"stifiPd thP 

12 

I 13 
I 

you about qE"ttin2 uo Benavides Imolem~nt and HPrcl-

14 "'arc!. 

IS MR. MITCHELL: ~ardon me, Jud2P, I 

16 don't know whethf"r I'm in or out, but I would 

17 nb1Pct to t~at testimony on t~at note~ thE" 

18 best f"Vf~Pnrf" is th~ note and I would ltkr 

19 to a~k ~fm to nroduce ft if he wouldn't mind 

20 and, ot~Prwfse, th~ best evidence rule would 

21 aonly as to what it contain~ and we movE" to 

22 strike i.t. 

23 THE MASTER: Well, you mean the te~timony 

24 about who made the note~ 

25 MR. MITCHELL: Yes. 

-----*--------------------------------------------------------------------+--1 
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THE MASTER: 

Q Now, Mr. Ramfro Carrillo di~cu~sed with you one 

A 

Q An~ w~y did he ~Ry ~twa s nPces~ary to set uo thP 

A Well, to my he~t rPcollectior he stated that he 

wante~ to ~ell ~~ods to the county, but he wanted 

tn ~Pll them throu~h the BenRvides Imolement an~ 

fhtrch••ere Store. 

Q Why was that nece~sary? 

A Well, he to.llt!'l the county commissioner and hP coulrl 

not ~ell directlv to the county throu~h the Farm 

0 And why was it neces~sry -- what was the basis for 

your wr~ting -- did he e~olain to you why to write 

checks nut to 0. P. CaDfllo? 

MR. MITCHEL: E7cuse mf', Judge, is he 

on the b'll? If he is not, these are all 

leading, I ~on't know whether I am suooosed 

I don't want t~ 

THE MASTER: Well, he is on -- I am 

I 
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~ 

a rultn2 on your ob1Pctton i~ whpre WP arP. 

MR. MITCHELl.: And I ~unno!!P then the 

Court doP~n't want to hP~r from mP on my 

nbiectinn~ on ht~ tP~timony. 

It fs nbviou~ a lot i~ hear~~y and all 

THF. 'fASTER: 

MR. MITC'mLL: May I ask him a voir 

df.re ouP~tinn, ~will ftnd out. 

TTF.: MASTER: Tn !lome e:lftE'nt from timP 

MR. ODAM: YE"s, !'d.r, I ~onln~i.7!e to 

that, I w~~ trytn, tn 2Pt back 9nme nf t~E' 

tPstfmony from thP day bPfnrP that was thP 

I can rPnhrasP thP ouestions where thE'y are 

MR. 'l'ofiTCHELL: May I a!llk hi.m a voir 

rulf' dnP9 ~no1y, Jud~P 

T'lE MASTER: Yes. 

----~-------------------------------------------------------------------1_-
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VOIR DIRE EXAMINATION 

BY MR. MITCHELL: 

Q Wa~ th~ nnt~ PY~cut~d in May nf 71 our~uant to 

- 170l 

I 
I 

you all'~ a~r~~mPnt of oartnPr~hio in May nf 71' 

0 W~~ th~ not~ nart of th~ d~a1' 

A YP~. ~tr. 

down and borrow~d th~ not~ and that rPfl~ct~d 

A And I c'f d. 

MR, MITCHELL: ThP oarolP Pvid~nc~ 

aooli~~ to th8t as a comm~noratfon of thP 

THE MASTER: Ov~rrul~d. 

MR, MITCHELL: NotP our ~xc~otfon. 

THE MASTER: But that doPS not ovPrrulP 

your hParsay obj~ction. 

--~i---------------------------------------------------------~-
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EXAMINATION CONTINUED 

2 

3 
BY MR. ODAM: 

4 

s can couch ft fn t~rms that would nnt b~ l~adin~. 

6 Dfd Ram{ro Carrtllo ~v~r ~tat~ t~ you to 

7 makP ch~cks out to 0. P. Carrll1n? 

8 A YP~, ~ir, he did. 

9 Q Why wPr~ th~ chPcks to b~ made out tn 0. P. 

10 Carri.llo? 

II A HP said that was mota y that was ~UTH)osed to 1-!:0 

12 to 0. P. Carrillo, I don't know the rPason why or 

13 

14 Q Okl!y. Now, t-•hPn we ,.Jere toJ!:ether tl,~ other dsy, we 

15 TqF, ~~TER: Are you still on your bill? 

16 MR. ODAM: No, str, I think tl,at we 

17 will -- I ~ill not bP askin~ hfm nuestions 

18 ~{~ht now sbout R8mlro Carrillo's statement~. 

19 I mi~ht l8ter on, but not ril-!:ht now. 

20 MR. MITCHELL: Now, is this evid~ncP 

21 bPfnJ.!: offpred 8S ~rimarv evidence because 

22 the commf~~inn is ~oln~ to read it and the 

23 Su~reme Court is J!:oln~ to re8d ft and the 

24 record fc filled with what I cnnsfder incnmne-

25 I 

I 
tent testimony, 

---4-----------------------------------------------~-
UIATIIAM & ASSOCIATES 

COURT REPORTERS 

717 ANTELOPE • GUARANTY BANK PLAZA 
CORPUS CHRISTl. TEXAS 7840t 

l 

I 



2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Nnw, if thP nloy is tn brfn~ t~is in 

undPr thP. ~ufsP of ~ome ch~ractP.r of formal 

hill, I •"ant the rPcord to refl f'Ct i. t. I 

want to hRvf' a recor~ t~~t is not fror.en whPn 

rP.ad it and if it ts fncnmnPtPnt, I 1ust want 

Now, Your Honor, w? would ob1Pct to thP 

inclusion of a bona ffdp rPcord nf this 

TJ.IE ~STER: You ~rP uttPrly t-'r«"'n~ in 

CounsPl has a rf~ht to makf' 

any bill hf' ~ishes to makf'. 

I bP1iPvP, Mr. Odam, I may chanpe my 

mind, I am goin~ to think ~bout tt, but I 

Pntry. 

MR. ODAM: Your Honor --

THE MASTER: I do think thP tPstfmnny 

bank, bnrrowfn~ thP thrPe thousand dollars tn 
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fact th~t he ~~~ned it and Mr. Ramtro Carrtll~ 

their name~ to a piecP of naoer. But, that, 

of cour~P, at this sta~e does not involve 

0. P. Carrillo. 

MR. ODAM: And I take i.t by that that 

the statement that was made by Ramiro Carrillo 

to have the c~Pcks made out to 0. P. Carrtllo 

THE MASTER: That is correct. 

MR. ODAM: Well, -- I, of course, would 

ask that that evidence thu~ far be on our 

bfll of excentton on that noint and tn addi-

tton not only for later ourooses, but I would 

hOOP that pPrhaps by later OUestfons nf this 

witness, later on, and throu~h discussions 

of oara~ranhs 7 throu~h 12, that nerhans I 

~an reconvtnce the court of t~e pecuniary 

TJ.!E MASTER: It is a very tentative 

rutin~. but you are stretchtn~. to my mind. 

the declaratfon a~atnst inte~t awfully far, 

to say t~at 0. P. -- that It is admissible to 
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nrove thAt whAt hP ~aid that RAmlro Carrillo 

i~ -- fn tellfn~ thts witnPs~ to makP a 

~hPck out to 0. P. Carrillo. 

lfability of Ramlro CArrillo to Duval County, 

thAt -- I am nretty dubious ~thout that bPin~ 

an e~centi.on. 

MR. MITCHELL: Parrlon me. 

THE MASTF.R: That tA your theory, i_s 

it not? 

MR. ODAM: ;es, sir, and, of course, I 

res~ect the Court's oosftfon on t~at, but I 

certainly fePl like it is 2nod. 

THE MASTER: You havP ur2ed the e~ceo-

tfon and you have a bill nreservfn2 your 

MR. ODAM: And like I s~tid, not to be 

contPmtuous, but at a l~ttPr onint, I will 

try to convince the Court that oerha~s that 

necuniAry intl!r'el'lt would lie 'f,dth R1.1mtrn 

C11rri 11 o. 

THE MASTER: I am convinced t~at you 

are in 2nod faith in your ~rofert nf evidPnce, 

but at this time, I t~ink you're erroneou~. 

MR. MITCHELL: May I reflect on the 
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b~v~nd -- nn R~m•n~ 7, 8, 9, 10, 11 An~ 1? 

~f thf~ motfnn t~ fntrn~ucP thP nlPa~fn~s. 

thf~ 1atP hour, A cnn~niracy and unon a 

cnnffnp~ nf 7, nf A oartnPrshfn. 

I nlPad ~urorf~P, nn knnwled~e. nn 

tinuancP. 

One, ~o that thP AmendPd nnttcP an~ 

h~nnrPd and followed wfth re~nect tn mv 

day rulP an~ t~ m•r~hall PVfdPnce as re~l!lr~~ 

nnw a ~•rtnPrshto. 

THE MASTER: 
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THF. MA~TF.R: 

EXAMINATION CONTINUED 

RY '.ffi, 0DA~: 

twill ~how you Anm~ ,f thP~~ st thiA tim~ snd 

try to r~fr~sh your m•mory ss tn wh~rP w~ ar~ 

Y~stPrdsy you wpre shown ~ ~nov of Exhibit E-60 

an" E-61. 

on what is m~rkPd as E-60, f~ thAt ~nrr~ct? 

you knnw, th~A~ ft~ms, E-60 anrl E-61, w~rP prpoarP~ 

by Mr. ClPofus GonP-al~~? 
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1 

I 
Q And vfvpn tn ~r. RRmiro Carrillo? 

A Yf'~. c:i r. 

HR, MITCHELL: NOt"', th~tt would bf' 

ob1f'et av11tn ~tnd movf' to strfkP ft and fur-

t~ar, ~" ha~ no oPr~onal -- hP f~ te~tffying 

8nd hP hRs no ~Prsnnal knowlarlgp of 60 and 61 

Your Hnnor. 

THP. :.tASTER: f.fr. Couli_nJ?:, ho,'~~ do you 

kno•'' th~~tt thPy , 'rf' sdven by Mr. Clf'ofus 

THE WITNESS: BPcause w~Pn I got thP 

chPck back from thPSP bills. Your Honor, I 

to my !':tflrf'. 

THF. MASTER: ThP nh1ecti.on is SURt~tinPd, 

MR. MITCHELL: All ri~ht, Your Honor. 

M'R., ODAM: Your Honor, I would -- I 

think thP rPcord shout~ rpflect that E-61, 

br{dp.:p fund. 

Al~n. ~P have-- we1l, Rtrfke that, strik~ 
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'I 

2 toe-. w~ will ~et to that uoint lAter nn. 

3 0 Now, your t~~timony wa~ that ~om~timP AftPr thP~e 

4 WPT'P l'r~oar,.,-i, yotl mad~ out 8 chpck tn 0. 'P. 

5 

6 A That i~ corr~ct, ~tr. 

7 0 An~ 85!11-fn, th~y werenot A~mltte~ fnto evidence 

8 yP~t~r~Ay, btlt at that time, I ~bowed you what 

9 

10 A Yes, •dr. 

II 0 Ani! asketl -1 f you r'"· i.dentf fy that" 

12 A Yf!~, ~fr, thst i_~ a check from thf' Ben~tvitlf't:: 

13 lml)lf'ment ani! H11rd~llre Coml)any tn 0. P. CArrillo 

14 for one thou~and f!'~~htePn dollar~. 

15 Q Now, the check that you havf' fn your hand ~~ not 

16 an orf~inal cnoy of a chPck, is it? 

17 A No, Rir, i.t {A a cn0 y. 

18 0 You rnadP a ~tatPmf'nt yeAteriiPy, I don't r.-cal1 

19 thP PY&ct nliPP, but your statemPnt ~as I'IOmf'thin~ 

20 to thP pffprt nf you didn't know w~f're the 

21 orf~ina1s •f'rf' And you Plt~rr hAd them at home 

23 A YPR, l'lir. 

24 Q D('l ynu 1"ec11ll thAt Rtatf'mPnt? 

25 A Yf'R, !"lr. 
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0 Siner that timP, h~vr you ma~P ~ ~Parch to rlPtrr-

2 

3 chPeks mi~ht he thftt werP m~rlr out to 0. P. 

4 Carrillo? 

5 A Yf'!';, "ir. 

6 0 Did you f~nd any cheeks at homP? 

7 A Yf'S, !ll{r, J found -- I didn't finrl none Rt homf'. 

8 no, !'lir. 

9 

10 to whom thf'y were ~~ven t~ f~nd out wherf' thP 

II 

12 MR. MITCHELL: Excu!lle mP, Your H~nor, 

13 those were four le8~in~ ouel'ltions and we 

14 objf'et to htm leadtn~. HP can ask him wherP 

15 

16 

17 ally. we ob1ect to the te!'ltimony a!ll rP~ard~ 

18 I beliPVP thP Court had made a 

19 rultn, nn that and it has been exeludPd. 

20 MR. ODAM: Your Honor, thP rultn~ wa!'l 

21 

22 "'"s unRvi.labte. 

23 THE MASTER: Correct, and thP ob1ection 

24 iR overrulf'd. The nueation wa!'l did hP chPck 

25 with w"t~m" 

----~--------------------------------------------------------~ 
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Q And with whom di~ you chPck? 

A I cRllP<f Mr. John BlBnton. 

Q Anrl rlt<f you obt11in chPcks f'lallhtm" 

A YPS, •dr. 

Q Could yrooroducP those &t this time~ 

(HRndP~ to Couns~l.) 

Q All ri~ht, now, all of thP ~ntPs of thP chPcks 

that you are ~ivtng to mP at this t~mP --

THE MASTER: Excus~ mP, Mr. O~am, l~t's 

r~fer to co~1Ps as coofes. 

MR, ODAM: All ri.j!ht, sir. 

THE MASTER: And ori~f_nals as or1 ~inals. 

MR. ODAM: All ri~ht, sir, 

MR. MITCHELL: An~ may I reauest, Your 

Honor, that someone tell the record who 

John Blanton i!'t, 

MR. ODAM: All ri~ht, sir, ~ood "uPstion. 

Q Can you describe f~r thP rPcord ~nd inform Mr. 

Mitchell who Mr. Blanton i.s? 

A Yes, sir, hP worked for the Attorney Gener&l, 
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0 And hP fR 1nr~tP~ in ~h~t cfty? 

2 A In San DiPP.o. 

3 0 HP ~~ workinp nn thP 

4 A HP ~~ •orkfn~ fn ~an DfPP.O rfpht nnw. 

6 A y,.~. 

8 

9 A YP~. ~ir. 

w 0 I Am ~orry. nrfpinAls. 

II H'R, ODAM~ 

12 nut of my mfnd, I thfnk w~ havP mort> coo{Ps 

13 

15 MR, ODAM: StrfkP that ~u~~tion. Let 

16 mP hAVP thf~ markt>d fir~t. 

17 
(Markt>d for fdt>ntfffcatfon by the 

18 
rPQortPr a~ Exhibit E-151.) 

19 

21 a~ Exhibit 1~1. an orf~fnal r~Pck, can ynu dPs-

22 

23 A Yps. "' r. that f s cht'ck numbPr 146 madp out tn 

24 n. P. Carrf1lo nn July 27th, 1~71, for thP ~mnunt 

25 

j 

I 
I 

-----f-----------------------------------------------------------------r--
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0 All rie:ht. 
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8 if 

II 
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10 
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14 
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25 

MR, ODAM: w,. would ~ff~r into PvidPnrP, 

Your Honor, t"P ori~inal C'hPrk Exhfbit E-1'51. 

MR. MITCHELL: The oh1e<'ti~n~ WP woulrl 

havP to thfs, of coursP, Ynu~ Honnr, wnuld 

bP thP obiecti~n that wp nreviously st~tpd 

~nd that is bpyond -- that thP mattpr~ 

~nnuirPd into e:o bPyond thP formal notice, 

that they're-- it would be-- rPlated to a 

nnn-1udicta1 act ~nd to~ay al~o. Y~ur Honor, 

~e would nlPad on thP ~round~ -- ~e would 

nhiP<'t on thP P,round~ of ~urnrf~e. 

f'IE MASTER: The ob1Pction i~ overrulPd 

~nd it ts admitted. 
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MR. MITCHELL: May we have a continuing 

objection to all the testimony that is 

relating to this alleged partnership between 

o. P. Carrillo and the witness and Ramiro 

Carrillo? 

THE MASTER: Yes, sir. 

MR. MITCHELL: John, t~is check that 

you were talking about here --

THE MASTER: Are you off the record? 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, Judge. 

(Discussion off the record.) 

THE MAS1ER: Back on the record. 

MR. ODAM: Your Honor, I would certainly 

make the original of this check and all other 

checks that I will be referring to available 

to Mr. Mitchell, but I would like to 

substitute these originals by Xerox copies 

that are in evidence, euch as E-69. 

THE MASTER: You said you wanted to 

substitute the originals for the Xerox cqtes? 

You want the originals in this record? 

M& ODAM: No, sir, I will want to with-

draw Exhibit E-151 and by doing so, I will 

still have E-69. We can substitute this 
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Xerox ir that is going to confuse things. 

2 THE MASTER: No, I don't think that is 

3 going to confuse things as long as the 

4 originals are here for the purpose of 

5 cross-examination. 

6 I think the record would be 

7 satisfactorily made by subrtituting fo~ the 

8 originals Xerox copies. 

9 MR. ODAM: All right, sir. 

10 Q (By Mr. Odam:) Mr. couling, once you made out this 

II check which is markeo E-151, I believe you testifiec 

12 yesterday -- what did you actually do with that 

13 check? 

14 A Gave the check to o. P. Carrillo, sir. 

15 Q And there is an indication on the back of the 

16 original check a& to what happened to the check 

17 after you gave it to him? 

18 A Yes, !.twas deposited in the First State Bank of 

19 Alice. 

20 Q Which one? 

21 A This one, the one in pink. 

22 MR. MITCHELL: Excuse me, the exhibit 

23 would speak for itself. This witness is 

24 speculating as to what the ~ank endorsements 

25 would be and that is obviously not endorsed. 

--~~------------------------------------------------------------------
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MR. ODAM: Well, we will let 1t speaK 

tor itself. 

Q (By Mr. Odam:) Mr. Couling, would this E-151 be 

one of the checks you were instructed by Ramtro 

Carrillo to make out? 

MR. MITCHELL: Leading, and we object 

on heareay. 

THE MASTER: The objection is overruled. 

Q Mr. Coullng, again, in your absence, and I believe 

we were up to this point yesterday, we might be 

covering some ground that we covered the other 

day, but I show you cqies of E-62 and E-63. 

To your own personal knowledge, is the 

description of the work performed on E-63, was that 

work performed by Benavidea Implement and Hardware? 

A No, sir, it was not. 

Q Can you read into the record what you are referring 

to? 

A "Rental for equipment and hauling caliche for 

county roads." 

Q Y~u identified this by Mr. Gonzalez' handwriting 

and being filled out by him? 

A Yes. 

Q And you did not fill it out yourP3lf? 

A No, sir. 
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MR. MITCHELL: we object to the answer 

2 of this one and the two previous questions. 

3 This witness doesn't have any knowledge of 

4 the documents contained in E-63 and it is 

s hearsay as to my client. 

6 MR. ODAM: May I ask him the basis for 

7 his knowledge? 

8 THE MASTER: Yes. 

s Q (By Mr. Odam:) How do you know this ticket was 

10 made out -- how de you know it was made by Cleofus 

II Gonzalez? 

12 A That is his initials and the bills I never did see. 

13 When the checks were issued, I asked what the 

14 checks were for. 

15 Q When the checks were brought from the county? 

16 A Right, and he stated, Ramiro Carrillo stated, they 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

2S 

were made from bills made up by Cleofus Gonzalez 

for them. 

MR. MITCHELL: we re-urge our objection. 

THE MASTER: The objection with respect 

to hearsay is sustained. 

Do you recognize Mr. Gonzalez' 

handwriting, Mr. Couling? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir. 

THE MASTER: Mr. Gonzalez testified he 
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made it out and I don't see why you are 

2 plowing that ground again. 

3 MR.ODAM: All right, sir. 

4 Q (By Mr. Odam:) The invoice prepared by Mr. Gonzale2, 

5 can you state the amount of that? 

6 A One thousand eighteen dollars sixty-five cents. 

7 Q And at any occasion after that, did you mak~ out 

8 a check to o. P. Carrillo in an amount similar to 

9 that, one thousand eighteen dollars? 

10 A Yes, sir. 

11 MR. MITC~LL: Objection, Your Honor, 

12 we would request that the answer contain a 

13 time. 

14 MR. ODAM: I will rephrase the question. 

15 Q The stata.nt for one thousand eighteen dollars 

16 sixty-five cents, I show you the item which is 

17 marked E-151, which was introduced and is in 

18 evidence? 

19 A Yes, sir. 

20 Q What is the amount of that check? 

21 A One thousand eighteen dollars, sir. 

22 Q Is this the check that you were looking at that 

23 was made sometime after the invoices were prepared? 

24 A Yes, sir. 

25 Q And it is within your knowledge that the check you 
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are looking at has a relation to this invoice? 

2 MR. MITCHELL: We object to that as 

3 hearsay and this is~ within the witness• 

4 knowledge. His understanding would be 

5 completely irrelevant and immaterial and he 

6 would be guessing. 

7 MR. ODAM: This witnes~ testified he 

8 owned Benavides Implement and Hardware and 

9 the tickets were sent in on the letterhead 

10 of his store. He should have some Knowledge 

11 of whether it h~s sent to the county and on 

12 what basis and knowledge of when the check 

13 came back out from the county. 

14 MR. MITCHELL: He has shown Ramiro 

15 Carrillo and he and o. P. Carrillo were not 

16 partners in this business. 

17 MR. ODAM: If that is the case, I expect 

18 Mr. Mitchell can testify to that. 

19 THE MASTER: Mr. Mitchell is correct, 

20 Mr. Couling•s understanding has nothing to 

21 do with it. 

22 You can ask him why he wrote that 

23 check to Judge Carrillo, if you wish. 

24 MR. ODAM: All right, sir. 

25 Q (By Mr. Odam:) Why did you write out this check 
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for one thousand eighteen dollars to o. P. Carrillo 

2 A Repeat the question? 

3 Q Why did you make out a check for one thousand 

4 eighteen dollars to o. P. Carrillo? 

5 A When the check from the county was brought to me, 

6 Ramiro Carrillo told me it was for o. P. and I 

7 made this check to o. P. 

8 MR. MITCHELL: We would object on hearsa 

9 and surprise and no connection with our ellen • 

10 THE MASTER: It is admitted for the 

II limited purpose of showing why he made the 

12 check. 

13 MR. ODAM: Yes, sir. 

14 THE MASTER: Which is Exhibit 151. 

IS MR. ODAM: Yes, sir. 

16 M&y I have a moment, Your Honor? 

17 THE MASTER: Yes, sir. 

18 MR. ODAM: With respect to paragraph 

19 seven, for the purpose of the record, that 

20 is what we are going into now. 

21 Q (By Mr. Odam:) I show you, Mr. Couling, the 

22 statement E-61 in the amount of one thousand eight 

23 dollars. 

24 A Yea, sir. 

~ Q And the invoice, E-60, for one thousand eight 
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dollars. 

2 A Yes. 

3 Q At any occasion after those invoices were prepared, 

4 did you have occasion to make out a check for a 

s similar amount to o. P. Carrillo? 

6 A Yes, sir. 

7 MR. MITCHELL: Judge, '.hat certainly is 

8 a broad and global question. Roman seven 

9 says 

10 MR. ODAM: Let me restate the question. 

II Q On or about April 16tt., did you have occasion to 

12 make out a check to o. P. Carrillo? 

13 A Yes, sir. 

14 Q I show you what has been marked as E-65 and ask 

15 you if you can identify it? 

~ A Yes, sir, it is a check for one thousand eight 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

dollars made out by me to o. P. Carrillo. 

MR. MITCHELL: We object to E-65. 

THE MASTER: It has not been offered. 

MR. ODAM: I am trying to identify it. 

MR. MITCHELL: Please instruct counsel 

to let me see those. He is just asking the 

witness questions about them --

THE MASTER: You have the right to see 

an instrument when it is offered, but you 
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don't have the right to read the entire 

2 instrument in the record before it is 

3 offered. 

4 MR. MITCHELL: All right, sir. 

s Q (By Mr. Odam:) E-65 ts a copy of a check? 

6 A Yes, sir. 

7 Q Do you identify this as being you-r handwrit.tng? 

8 A Yes, sir. 

9 .t This is a Xerox copy of a check. If it is an 

10 original copy of the check, would you have brought 

11 it with you today? 

12 A Yes, sir. If there had been one, I would have 

13 brought it. 

14 Q And you don't know where t~ check is? 

15 A No, sir, I don't know where it is. 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

MR. ODAM: We offer tn evidence E-65, 

a Xerox copy of a check. 

MR. MITCHELL: We object on the grounds 

of hearsay, best evidence rule, beyond the 

scope of the formal notice, surprise, and 

as I stated earlier, if it is now being 

offered under seven, we plead surprise on 

the partnership and move to postpone and 

have time to prepare. 

THE MASTER: The objection is overruled 
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2 Q 

3 

4 

5 

6 

and the exhibit is admitted. 

u (By Mr. dam:) Mr. :ouling, with respect to the 

check, we ask you now, why did you make out the 

check for one thousand eight dollars? 

MR. MITCHELL: Objection, speculation. 

THE MASTER: Overruled. 

... 

7 Q Please state why you made out the check? 

a A I got a check from the county for that amount and 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

I knew, or in turn found out, that it was from 

Precinct 2. Ramiro told m~ every check from 

Precinct 2, Remiro L~ld me I was supposed to make 

out another check in that amount to o. P. Carrillo. 

MR. MITCHELL: May I see the one 

thousand eighteen dollar check? Is that 

what you are asking about? 

MR. ODAM: Yes. 

THE MASTER: That is E-151. I thought 

you asked the question about E-65. 

MR. ODAM: Correct. I asked him 

questions about paragraph eight and realized 

I had not asked about paragraph seven. I 

meant to ask why the one thousand eight dollal 

check was prepared. 

MR. MITCHELL: That is why I asked 

about it, because I didn't know what he was 
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talking about. 

2 THE MASTER: He has offered it and it 

3 is admitted. 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, that is the one I 

5 just objected to? 

6 THE MASTER: Correct. 

7 MR. MITCHELL: I am hAving a hard time 

8 trying to keep up with them. 

9 MR. ODAM: It is tough all the way. 

10 MR. MITCHELL: I move to strike that 

11 side-bar rema. ·:. He has a hundred exhibits 

12 pre-marked and they are talking about an 

13 exhibit that is marked and 

14 THE MASTER: The only right he has is 

15 to hand it to the witness for identification. 

16 MR. MITCHELL: That is right. 

17 MR. ODAM: Now, for the purpose of 

18 clarification of the record, we are talking 

19 about paragraph seven. 

~ Q (By Mr. Odam:) Now, Mr. Couling, I show you what 

21 has been marked as a copy of a check. made out by --

22 to Benavides Implement and Hardware, E-57. 

~ A Yes, sir. 

24 MR. ODAM: Your Honor, I am sure these 

will receive objections and it is my intentiop 
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to have someone from the bank identify 

2 these copies this morning. If it would be 

3 all right with Your H~nor, I would like to 

4 ask these questions subject to these being 

5 properly identified and authenticated. If 

6 that is not the Court's desire, then, I 

7 cannot ask these questions at this time. 

8 I just simply thought it would be orderly to 

9 do so. 

10 THE MASTER: Well, upon your represents-

II tion you are ~Jing to have someone or some-

12 body here that you hope to get the 

13 instrument in evidence by, you may proceed. 

14 MR. ODAM: All right, sir. 

IS Q (By Mr. Odam:) Again, Mr. Couling, tor clarifica-

16 tlon of the record, I am referring to E-57. E-57 

17 is a Xerox copy of a check on the County of Duval? 

" A Yes, sir. 

19 Q What is the amount of money stated on that? 

20 A One thousand eight dollars. 

21 () Does it state the date? 

22 A Yes, sir, April 12th, 1971. 

~ Q And a claim number? 

U A Yes, B-911. 

25 Q Who is the payee on that check? 
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A Benavides Implement and Hardware. 

2 Q Is this the check that you referred to coming from 

3 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

24 

the county to you? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q And subsequently you made out a check to o. P. 

Carrillo? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q And who endorsed this check? 

MR. MITCHELL: May I have the objection 

to this line of questioning, because I don't 

want the allen~~ on ucy part to be a waiver? 

May I have the objections that I stated 

previously, beyond the scope of the formal 

notice -- I would like to have an agreement 

on that and I want the record to indicate 

no waiver on my part. 

THE MASTER: I don't know what those 

objections are directed to. 

MR. ODAM: The question was if he could 

identify his signature on E-57. 

THE MASTER: It was to that quest ion? 

MR. MITCHELL: No, it was to the global 

question as to these other checks and I 

wanted to note that I had pr~viously 

objected. I think he is going about it 
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correctly, but I didn't want to have all of 

2 my other objections waived by my silence, 

3 THE MASTER: Proceed. 

4 Q (By Mr, Odam:) Can you identify the endorsement 

5 on the check? 

6 A Yes, that is my signature. 

7 Q That is your handwriting? 

8 A Yes, sir. 

9 Q And I believe you testified to this earlier one --

10 well, strike that. 

11 Once you receiveo a check from the county, 

12 what would you do with that check? 

13 A Like on this particular one that came from 

14 Precinct 2, I knew it was one that I could make 

15 a check to o. P. Carrillo for. 

16 Q What would you do with this check itself? 

17 A Deposit it in the First State Bank of San Diego, 

n Q Referring to E-68, is this a check made out to 

19 your store? 

20 A Yes, sir. 

21 Q To the best of your knowledge, d ld you rece 1. ve 

22 this check? 

23 A Yes, sir. 

24 Q And what is lnd lea ted on the back of the check? 

~ A Benavides Implement and Hardware and it was 
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deposited in the First State Bank of San Diego. 

2 MR. MITCHELL: Is that one you will 

3 have a witness on? 

4 MR • ODAM: Right. 

5 Q Do you know of your own personal knowledge, Mr. 

6 Couling, do you know who put the stamp of the 

7 Benavides Implement and Hardware ~tore on th~re? 

8 A I did, sir. 

9 Q And again, referring to your earlier testimony, 

10 this check is dated what? 

11 A July 15, 1971. 

12 Q Was it your testimony earlier that after this 

13 check was received by you, you made out a check 

14 to o. P. Carrillo for one thousand eighteen 

15 dollars? 

16 A Right. 

11 Q And the check you made out for one thousand 

18 eighteen dollars is the check you earlier 

19 identified as E-151? 

~ A Yes, sir. 

21 MR. ODAM: Now, moving to paragraph 

22 nine for the record, 

~ Q Mr. Couling, I show you what has been marked and 

24 admitted as E-71 and E-72. These are testified 

25 to by Mr. Gonzalez that he prepared them. Can you 
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T read into the record what the description of work 

is on E-71? 

A "Rental of equipment and --," I can't read that 

4 part of it. Well, and, "contract hauling for 

5 caliche." 

6 Q "Rental equipment and contract hauling caliche"? 

7 A Yes. 

8 Q This is made out on Benavides Implement and 

9 Hardware tickets, is that correct? 

10 A Yes. 

II Q Did your store actua ... ly perform tl'V! work --

12 strike that. 

13 Do you know whether or not your store performed 

14 the work described on this ticket? 

IS A No, s i r , I d o n o t • 

16 MR. MITCHELL: Pardon me, the 

17 question was, did he know, and I don•t know 

18 whether the witness testif~ he did or did 

19 not. He testified it did not. 

20 THE MA Sl' ER : The que s t ion was , do you 

21 ~:now, and he really answered the next 

22 question. 

~ Q (By Mr. Odam:) Do you know whether or not the work 

was performed? 

~ A It was not performed, sir. 

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES 
COURT REPORTERS 

717 ANTELOPE • GUARANTY BANK PLAZA 
CORPUS CHRISTl, TEXAS 7840f 



l_'l_3_l 

MR. ODAM: We have marked E-73, which i 

2 a claim jacket 

3 THE MASTER: Mr. Odam, is Mr. ·il1iams 

4 the bank officer? 

5 MR. ODAM: Yes, sir. 

6 THE MASTER: Off the record. 

7 
(Discussion off the record.) 

8 

9 THE MASTER: Back on the record. 

10 MR. ODAM: Again, for the purpose of 

11 the record, we ~.ad introduced and admitted 

12 in evidence E-73, the claim jacket, D-1990, 

13 in the amount of one thousand six dollars, 

14 and for the purpose of continuity also, we 

15 yesterday had established the contents 

16 thereof were E-71 and E-72, which came out 

17 of claim jacket 1990. 

~ Q (By Mr. Odam:) Mr. Cou1ing, I show you a Xerox 

19 copy of a check that is identified as claim 

20 number B-1990, and ask you if you can identify 

21 this. 

~ A Yes, sir, that is a check made to the Benav~s 

23 Implement and Hardware Store. 

24 Q Do you know whether you received this check for 

25 one thousand six dollars? 
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A Yes, sir. 

2 Q And once you received the check in the amount of 

3 one thousand sixdollars, dated September 20, 1971, 

4 what did you do with it? 

5 A Deposited it in the First State Bank of San Diego. 

6 Q And on or about September -- now, on the check 

7 that has been marked E-74, can you identify from 

8 looking at the back of the copy of the check what 

9 you did with the check? 

10 A Deposited it in the First State Bank of San Diego. 

11 Q How can you identif_y that? 

12 A By the rubber stamp and the way I slanted it when 

13 I endorsed it. 

14 MR. MITCHELL: The question and 

15 the answer would be subject to being a 

16 violation of the best evidence rule. 

17 THE MASTER: Overruled. 

18 MR. MITCHELL: And hearsay. 

19 THE MASTER: Overruled. 

20 Q Mr. Couling, the check that Mr. Mitchell is looking 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

at from the county is dated September 20, 1971 --

MR. ODAM: I will ask the reporter to 

mark these. 

(The above-mentioned dccuments were 

marked E-152 and E-153 for identification.) 
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Q I show you what has been marked E-152 and E-153 and 

2 ask you if you can identify these items? 

3 A Yes, sir. 

4 Q Could you describe to the Court what they are? 

s A Two checks made from the Benavides Hardware and 

6 Implement to o. P. Carrillo. 

7 Q What are the amounts of money shown on them? 

8 A Seven hundred dollars and three hundred six dollars. 

9 Q What is the seven hundred dollars? 

10 A E-152. 

11 Q What is the three hL.'dred six dollars? 

12 A E-153. 

13 

14 

IS 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

MR. MITCHELL: Excuse me. This is the 

problem that I am having. He is going to 

ask him, without giving me an opportunity to 

first see them, ask him questions about them. 

MR. ODAM: I offer these two ortginal 

checks in evidence, E-152 and E-153. 

THE MASTER: I think we may as well take 

our recess at this time. 

Mr. Odam, if you have other 

instruments Mr. Mitchell has not seen, let 

Mr. Mitchell see them at this time. 

MR. ODAM: Yea, sir, I will do that. 

THE MASTER: Do you want to put Mr. 
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3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

1 4 

Williams on the stand out of turn? 

MR. ODAM: Yes, sir, I would like to 

put him on out of turn. 

THE MASTER: You may do so. 
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KARL ~-IILLIAMS, 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 
BY MR., FLUSCHE: 

9 

II 

14 ,-\ 

16 A 

17 ~tatP RRnk of San Dtego. 

21 

23 0 lin~ fnr ,0"' 1onp " ner~od nf timr., 

----~--------------------------------------------------------------~--
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I! 
4 

5 
i' 
'I 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

IS 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A ; 1 to 60. 

0 An~ wh~t w~~ your nosition dur'n~ thosP earlier 

VPI'IT.'S? 

0 Do you know Tudge 0. P. C~rrilln' 

A I d,.,. 

0 Ho~·· lonp. hAve yruknown JuciP.:e Carr-i.11o' 

A I fir~t berAmP l'!cnuAinte~ with him, I beliPve, 

durinK my first tPnurP in the bAnk. 

Q All rfeht, so thRt woulci be, s8v, twenty yPars 

Q And in your cAnacity illS a cashFr of the -- of 

thP hank of S111n D{e~o, Te~as, l'!rP you thP custod'an 

nf the records 1 

A Ye~. !'lfr. 

0 Now, in recent wePks, hAve you hAd occl'lsion to 

se111rch thP rPcorcis of thP b111nk And to nrnduce 

rert~fn items th111t are in your custody? 

A Yes, sir. 

0 TPll thp Court how you arP ablP to do this, by 

item~ from the bank? 

A ThP method wp u~P, of course, is from the mtcTo-

fflm records of thP bank, using ~ -- what we c11111 
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2 

J 

4 

s 

6 i' ,I 
!I 

7 

:I 
8 

II 9 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

u 

Z2 

Z3 

!4 

!5 

1nnk At th~t dnrumPnt, 1uRt 1~nk I• nvPr. 

_ _lH7t­

l 

f~ a rPDrndurtfnn nf nne nf the ttPmR thnt wa~ 

A It i!'l. 

0 Arr you fAmiliAr wfth thr ·- Nfth ~hP ~•~nnturPR 

of Mr. Wal~ MPPk, Mr. Maldonado and Mr. Soliz? 

A I 11m. 

0 All rip.ht. ~ir. I •• d_ll SClk you to 1 nok at thE' 

rnd~rRPment on thE' back and tP11 thP Court whether 
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~ I 
II 
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'• 

3 I 
II 

4 :I 
I 

II 
5 ·I I, 

:I 
6 !I ,, 

II 
7 'I 

:I 8 

9 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

1 I ':7 

Q N~w. Mr. Wf1liam~. you h~vP 1~okPrl ~nd PY&mln~d 

PAch of th~ EYhfbit~, which I hav~ ~nnum~rat~d 

of thP item~ which came throu•h your hank an~ 

nroc~~~ed by the means that you de~crlbed earlier. 

A They are. 

t~~ various individuals on there a~ being the 

venufnp sf~natur~~ of the nersons they nurnort to 

renrel'lent? 

A In A!'! far as I know the signatures, yei'l, "'r. 

Q LPt me ask you ~nPclfically about - are you 

ntze the !'liP-nature, of Jud~e 0. P. Carrillo? 

Q I will hand you what ha~ been marked ~" EY~ibft 6~ 

and nsk you to look at the revPrse l'lide of that 

item and I w{11 ask you to !'!tate whether or not 

you recognf~e that !'lignature. 

(Handed to the witness.) 

Q Do you recoRn{~e that ~~~nature? 

A YPs, •dr. 

0 And whose signature is that? 
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A Mr. 0. P. Carrillo. 

Q I notlc~. Mr. William~. t~at nn ~om~ of thP~P 

item~ that thPrP a~n~ar~ to he a blue lin~ felt 

markinP- nen. Can you t~ll the Court how those 

A Yes, ~ir, in renrnductn~ the~e n'cturP~ from the 

microfilm, the mAchine doe~ nnt ~'n~1P out a 

~ingle fram~ on the microfilm hecau~e of it~ sf~e. 

Con~enuPntly, it will at timP~ take nicture 

ad1acent to the ~ub1ect nicture we are looking 

for and 'n any -- 'n ruost instance~. they are --

they have not~•n~ to do with th~ sub1ect matter. 

They 1ust relat~ to tndtvtdual~ and we do not 

f~et that it is fair to those pPonlP for their 

bankin~ busines~ to be disntayed outsfdp th~ bank. 

Q And who put thPse blue l'f nt> felt tin nen markinP:!! 

A The bank did. 

Q Now, I'm go In~? to hand you what have be£>n markf>d 

as E7hfbits 152 an~ 151 and~k you tn look at the 

rPverse ~ide nf those it£>ms and I will ask you 

whPther or not you can tell thP Court whos~ signa-

ture ~nnears on the endors~ment nf thoqe items. 

A Mr. 0. P. Carrillo. 

MR. FLUSCHE: I'll ask th~ court renorter 
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-# 1741. 

I 
" I to mark tht c: c!ncumpnt ~.-~ th thP nP:ll't number 

2 
which (~ 154, l~ th~t rnrrPct? 

3 

4 

5 

6 :I 
It 

7 
II 

8 il 
I 

0 I'll ~how you wh~t has bef'n markPc! ~s E:ll'hfbft 154 

w.,lch nurnort~ to bf' 1t check dr~"~<·.• on vnur bank 

in thE' amount of "1nf' hundre~ ~nd nfnety-ffvP 
9 

dolhrs chtted N·wember 15th, 1971, and I'll Ask 
IO 

you to look at thE' rPversE' sf~p nf th~t check 
II 

and I w~ll now A~k you whethf'r or not vnu reco~-
I2 

ntP.e that sl~nltture? 
13 

A YPs, c:fr. 
14 

0 And whose signaturE' is it? 
IS 

A Mr. o. P. Carrillo. 
16 

MR, MITCHELL: May I ~sk Counsel a 

17 
~uestfon, Your Honor. 

18 
THE MASTFR: Yes, sfr. 

19 
MR. MITCHELL: Mr. Odam, this i.~ onE' 

20 
vou had gfven me e8rlter. fc: ~t not? 

21 
MR, ODAM: YPs, l'!tr. 

22 
MR, MITC'iELL: All rf~ht. 

23 
MR, FLUSC HE: 

24 
MR, ODAM: Wait, offer thosP. 

25 THE ~STER: You .,AVE' not offpred them. 
----~-------------------------------------------------------------------r-
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MR, MITCHELL: You hav~n't off~r~~ these 

y~t. 

MR, FLUSCHE: W~ll, now. some of them 

hav~ been off~r~rl and snme of them have not. 

THE \fASTER: Well, you can r~offer all 

of th~m. 

MR. FLUSCq'E: All rf.P.:"'lt, I'll rf'offer 

Exhf.bi t 6 5 --

THE MASTER: They are ennum~rst~d as 

EYhtbits 65, 68, 69, 74, 75, 76, 80, 82, 85 

88 and 94. 

MR. FLUSCHE: I did not offer 154 at 

this time. 

THE MSTER: But you offered those 1ust 

nnw? 

MR. FLUSCHE: Yes, ~~r. 

THE MASTER: Now state ynur obiectf.on. 

MR. MITCHELL: May I have them, ol~ase, 

for the ournos~ of my ob1ection. 

(Handed to Counsel.) 

MR. MITCHELL: Thank ynu, Judge, May 

to onE> of them? 

THE MASTER: Yes, sir. 
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2 

VOIR DIRE EXAMINATION 

BY MR, MITCHELL: 
5 

6 Q Mr. Wtlltams, did vou td~nttfy E-R5? 

7 A Y~~. ~ir, 

B Q Did your bank make that? 

9 A It wa~ made under our ~uoervision, yes, ~ir. 

10 Q All right, a~d how about the 

11 I ctn' t tell whE'thPr '·1-terP -!!I an E'ndnrsement on 

12 tl-terP or not. 

13 A A~ a matter of fact I cannot p{ thPr. 

14 0 Wf'll, it doPsn 1 t aotu~llr tn bf" mll~f' 11t thP samf' 

15 timE' as thf'se othPr~. Can you tE'll thf' Court 

16 whether it was, in fact, made 11 different timf' 

17 and under wh~tt c'rcumstances th~tt is differf'nt 

18 from those other~ ~o that I may inform myse1f. 

~ A If my recollection is ri~ht, it w11s made on a 

20 m~tchtne by thf' Intf'rnal Revenue of'onlP, 

21 Q WPll, d!l you know th11t thPy tele i.t or --

~ A It was made under our suoervision on a machine 

23 which is to my knowled~P. oroduces a oieture 

24 cd mi. 11tr to that . 

25 Q Hnw t~~bout 85, what woAd be your testimony a!'l 
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!/ 8 

I 
9 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 . 

22 

23 

24 

25 

THE MASTER: Thi~ i~ R~. I am sorry. 

MR. FLUSCHE: Th~t is E~hibit R~. 

Arthur. 

THE MASTER: You havE' P-Ot tNo Exhibit 

85's? 

MR. FLUSCHE: Tho~e are iu~t extra 

conies. 

MR. MITCHELL: All right, Your Honor, 

wp would ob1Pc_ to thP introduction of 56, 

65, 68, 69, 74, 75, 76, RO, 82, R5, 8R, anrl 

94 on the grounds it vto1atps the bE>st evi-

dpncE' rulE>• not nronE>rly authPntfcatE'd and 

the Court, for the nurnosP nf n~ waiving our 

rE>cord bPynn~ the formal noticE', beyond thP 

during the time and furthE'r, Your Honor, 

WE' ~lE'ad sur"rtae in that the Examiner has 

in Romans 7, 8, 9, 10, 11. 12, from thP --

from thnqf' alleged to nne involving nartnershir· 
I 

THE MASTER: The oh1ecti.on is overrulPd 1 

i 
---1+---------------------------------· -- --- +--
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2 

BY MR. MITCHEL~: 
3 

4 Q Mr. Williams, you previously testified in FederRl 

5 Court, did you not? 

6 A Yes, sir. 

7 Q What was the date of that testimnny and the nate 

8 I had the privilege of cross-examination of you 

9 before this? 

w A I don't recall. 

11 Q Would that be about Je ptember, 1975? 

12 A I believe that is correct. 

~ Q I believe at that time you stated there was a gap 

14 in your work with the First State Bank of San 

15 Diego of a period of how long? 

16 A From about 1960, sometime i.n 1960, to someti.me in 

17 1970. 

" Q You previously worked with the bank pri.or to 1960? 

19 A Yes, sir. 

20 Q And you left in 1960 and came to Corpus Christi, 

21 i.s that correct? 

22 A Among other places, yes, str. 

~ Q I believe you went back to the First State Bank 

24 in 1970? 

25 A Yes , s ir • 
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~ ~~nd continued from 1970 to date? 

2 A Right. 

3 Q Do you know Rudolfo Couling as a customer of the 

4 First State Bank of San Diego? 

5 A I do. 

6 Q Did Benavides Implement aro Hardware maintain a 

7 checking account for that busines~ separate HDd 

8 apart from the personal checking account of M~. 

9 Rudolfo Couling? 

10 A Yes. 

11 Q Were you asked by tli<- Attorney General to bring 

12 the signature card for the Benavides Implement 

~ q and Hardware Store owned by Rudolfo Couling from 

14 1971 through 1975? 

15 A No, sir. 

16 C~ May I ask you, please, first, if you hllve any 

17 independent recollection of whether or not a 

18 signature card existed for the Benavides Implement 

19 and Hardware ftore? 

20 A I believe it does. 

21 Q Do you have any recollection of the date of it? 

22 A No, sir. 

23 Q Do you have any knowledge of whether it was more 

24 than this one? 

25 A No, sir. 
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Q May I ask you to search your records and see if you 

2 can be in a position, the next time we call you, to 

3 make a statement as to whether there was a stgna tur 

4 care in 1971? 

s A Yes, I would l:e glad to do so. 

6 Q You did indicate you knew Judge o. P. Carrillo? 

7 A Yes, sir. 

8 Q Would you characterize for the Court whether or not 

9 his goings and comings from the bank would be 

10 often, occasional, spasmodic or what? 

11 A Occasional. 

~ Q And so that the record is abundantly clear, as to 

13 the procedure adopted as to Exhibit 57, 65, 68, 

14 69, 74, 75, 76, Bo, 82 and 85, 94, can you tell 

IS us first, were these exhibits presented to you for 

16 your reproduction? 

17 A They were produced in response to a subpoena. 

18 Q How? 

~ A In most instances, by the select committee or by 

the Senate committee. 

~ Q so that the record reflects they have been pre-

22 

24 

viously testified to in the record, the House 

resolution committee held a hearing in Austin. 

Could that serve your recollecttop as to the first 

time they were np.taiuced? 
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-t 
A I cannot recall the dates or the occasion called 

' . 
I 

for these records to be reproduce~ 

3 II 

i 
Q But if that was the only House subcommittee 

4 investigating this, could we aF::.ume that was the 

5 call 1'or the reproduction of them? 

6 A I would assume so, yes, sir. 

7 Q When you wEre asked to go over tt- em for this 

8 hearing, and how did you knO'I which ones you were 

9 to be questioned about? Did you have a conversati 

10 with Mr. Flusche or Mr. Odam or Ms. Levatino 

II concerning them? 

12 A No, sir. 

13 Q The ones you were asked about, when did you first 

14 see them? 

15 A About 1~ minutes ago. 

16 Q Dtd you not supervtse their reproduction? 

17 A Yes, sir. 

U Q When was that? 

19 A During the course of their reproduction. 

~ Q How about time-wise? 

21 A That has been over a period of several months. 

~ Q I believe the record reflects there has been a 

23 task force from the Attorney General's office 

24 present in San Diego? 

25 A Yes. 
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And when you say, over a period of months, is t 
2 it your answer that various agencies have been 

3 coming in and out of the bank? 

4 A No, sir, we reproduced them. They asked for them 

5 under a subpoena. It is only after they subpoenaed 

6 them that we produced them. 

7 Q, Do you have the subpoenas on fl.lL, and I am sure 

8 you do, since it is required by banking laws, do 

9 you not? 

10 A Yes. 

11 Q, That call for these .Ltems, Mr. Williams? 

12 A I am sure we do. 

13 Q. would you make a note and see if you can ~1a tch 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

the subpoenas and what agency subpoenaed them with 

the exhibits? 

MR. FLUSCHE: That doesn't have any 

bearing on the authenticity of these 

documents and that is --

MR. MITCHELL: That is correct and I 

~ill defer to the Court•s ruling. He is 

correct. I am gotg to call hl.m back in 

connection with our pleas in abatement and 

so forth and I am doing so with the fact l.n 

mind that maybe it can save time for the 

Master. 
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M'R. FLUSCHE: I don't th!.nk those 

2 queat!.ons would have anyth!.ng to do w!.th 

3 pleas in abatement. They are irrelevant 

4 to the authenticity of these documents. 

s THE MASTER: I agree with the objection. 

6 Mr. Mitchell, if you call him 

7 back, you can put that in the subpoena. 

8 MR. MITCHELL: All r 1g ht. 

s Q (By Mr. Mitchell:) Anyway, they were not prepared 

10 at the request of Mr. Flusche or Mr. Odam or Ms. 

11 Levatino? 

12 A They did not ask me to present specific items. I 

13 have the subpoena right here in my pocket. 

~ Q May I have that? 

15 A Yes. 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

MR. MITCHELL: May I have it marked, 

please. 

1\R. FLUSCHE: This is cluttering up 

the r~cord and it has no bearing on the 

authenticity of these documents. 

THE MASTER: What is the purpose of 

having this subpoena marked, Mr. Mitchell? 

MH. MITCHELL: I now note it was for 

the first time issued and it was not a 

subpoena duces tecum. The subpoena is a 
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Llanke t --

2 THE MASTER: Do you really need it 

3 marked and offered in evidence, couldn 1 t you 

4 just ask him about it? 

5 MR. MITCHELL: I guess I could. 

6 THE :t-1ASTER: We 11, let 1 s see if it can 

7 be stipulated. 

8 MR. FLUSCHE: We will so stipulate. He 

9 does need th:s subpoena for his records. 

10 MR. MITCHELL: All right. 

II Q (By Mr. Mitchell:) ... will ask: you how you know, 

12 since the subpoena is not a duces tecum, how did 

13 you know which items you would be questioned about? 

14 A I had no knowledge of any 1 tem to be que slioned 

15 about. 

16 Q YJu d idn 1 t know beforehand which ones you were to 

17 be questioned about? 

18 A N _), s 1 r. 

19 Q Are you sure your testimony stands on each and 

20 every one of them? 

21 A I went over those with counsel about 15 minutes 

22 before coming onto the stand. 

23 c And you were shown each and every one of them and 

24 had an opportunity to examine them? 

25 A Yes, sir. 

-----+1----------------------------------~-·---
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Q And that is the basis of your testt·:.ony you have 

2 given? 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

.18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

24 

25 

A Yes, sir. 

HR. MITCHELL: I have no further 

questions. 

MR. FLUSCHE: Nothing further. 

THE MASTER: Thank you, Mr. Williams. 

I expect we will see erch other again from 

what counsel says. 

MR. ODAM: We will recall Mr. Rudolfo 

Couling. 

THE !VlA STER : Yes. 

For the record, I have E-152 and 

E-153 as being offered. They were handed for 

counsel to look at at the time we took the 

recess and there is no objection and no 

opportunity to object. I have E-154 as not 

yet being offered. 

Have you any objections to E-152 

and 153? 

MR. MITCHELL: Thank you, Your Honor. 

I might add that the Court keeps up with 

this very well. 

I would object to E-152 and E-153 

as being irrelevant and immaterial to thi& 
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I 
proceeding and beyond the scope of the formal'

1

. 

notice and the other objections wtlch we have 
I 

and I will repeat if the Court so desires. I 

THE MASTER: There ls no need to. 

Well, of course, the relevancy 

has not yet been made apparent. I assume it 

will be? 

MR. ODAM: That 1& correct. These 

checks pertain to paragraph nine. 

THE MASTER: They are admitted, 

Bxhlbits E-152 and E-153. 

MR. MITCHELL: I expect that the 

checks are to be totaled up, is that what 

you are doing? 

MR. ODAM: Yes, that is exactly right. 

MR. MITCHELL: I object, they are not 

within nine, then, Judge. 

THE MASTER: All right, sir. 

FURTHER EXAMINATION OF MR. COULING 

BY MR. ODAM: 

H Q Mr. Coullng, I show you the two checks, original 

25 copies -- the orig~l cheaks which have been 
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e.dmi tted in evidence as E-152 and E-153 rota ltng 

2 one thousand six dollars, is that correct? 

3 A Yes, sir. 

4 Q And asK you why you wrote these checks out to O. P. 

5 Carr il.lo? 

6 II 
:I 

A Again, they were checks I got from the county from 

7 Precinct 2 and the same checks I was instructed 

8 earlier that I would have to make the checks to 

9 o. P. Carrillo. 

10 MR. MITCHELL: Our previous objections 

11 and non-respon tve and hearsay. 

12 THE MASTER: Your objections are overrul d, 

13 Q Mr. Couling, you stated that you received a check 

14 from the bank. Would that be the check ~ re marked 

15 as E-74 in the amount of one thousand six dollars? 

16 A Yes, s.Lr. 

17 Q And would you explain why a check was mecle: out on 

18 September 22nd in the amount of seven~ndred 

19 dollars and another check a month later for three 

20 hundred six dollars? 

21 ,, vlell, lt was two days after I received the check 

22 and o. P. came by and said he needed seven hundred 

23 dollars, so I made a check for that amount. 

24 Q Stop right there. Would you repeat what you just 

25 said? 

---tr--------------------~-------------
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A 0. p. Carrillo said he needed money, so I made 

c ')J.Lt 
hin, 

2 a check for seven hundred dollars. 

3 Q The check you made for seven hundred dollars, he 

4 personally made this request to you? 

5 A Yes, sir. 

6 Q Was thia in payment for services he rendered to 

7 Benavides Implement and Hardware? 

8 .r., N>, sir. 

9 Q Was it your understanding that this wa£ for his 

10 interest in the store? 

11 A No, s l r. 

12 Q You testified earlier that Ramiro ~arrillo stated 

13 o. P. Carrillo was a silent partner ln t~e store? 

14 A Yes, E ir. 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

t-lR. MITCHELL: We continue our 

objection to all of that testimony and we 

object --

THE MASTER: That is an ob,Jection I have 

sustained. 

MR. ODAM: That is right, and also, for 

the purpose of the record --

THE MASTER: Then, just ste.te this ~n a 

bill, if 1 t is. The objection is sus tg ined 

as of this time, but you may certainly make 

a bill on it; • 
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2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

IS 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

MR. ODAM: All right, sir, For the 

purpose of the bill of exception, we will 

continue with this line of questioning. 

Q (By Mr. Odam:) Mr. Ramiro Carrillo stated to you 

that o. P. Carrillo was to be a silent partner 

in Benavides Implement antj Hardware, is that 

correc t7 

A That o. P, and Ramiro were buth to be silent 

partners. 

Q That 0, P, Carrillo and Ramiro Carrillo were both 

to be silent partners? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q And did o. P. Carrillo make any statement8 on the 

notes that we referred to earlier? 

A No, not to my knowledge. 

Q Other than the statement made by Ramiro ,;arrillo 

that 0, F. was to be a silent partner in the 

business, at any time thereafter, did 0, P. 

Carrillo participate in the business of Benavides 

Hardware and Implement? 

A No, s1 r. 

Q Did 0, P. Carrillo at any time instruct yotl, Mr. 

Couling, with respect to how you were to carry on 

the business 1 

MR. MITCHELL: Is this still on the billl? 
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-------------------~ 

Otherwise, lt ls leading and we object to 

2 it as hearsay. 

3 THE MA'31'Ect: The question was, did o. P. 

4 Carrillo at any time instruct Mr. Couling 

5 with respect to how to carry on the business. 

6 That is off the bill. 

7 MR. MITCHELL: Leading 3nd hearsay and 

8 beyond the scope of the specifications. 

9 THE MASTER: The objection is overruled. 

10 Q (By Mr. 0dam: ) The quest ion is, Mr. Couling, did 

II o. P. ,~arrillo -- cau you tell us whether or not 

12 o. P. Carrillo stated to you how to run the 

13 business in any respect? 

14 A No, sir. 

15 Q Did he ever eome or. the premises and participate 

16 in the btls ine as? 

17 A No,sir. 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 
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2 I 

3 

IJ 
4 ' 

5 

6 

7 

8 I ,' :, 
9 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

Z2 

23 

24 

25 

lf)'1 

WAR hi~ actfnn any nth~r th•n to cnm~ by an~ ~fck 

uo th~ ch~ck11? 

A H~ n~r c•me to th~ stor~. sfr, no, Rlr. 

Q For ~xamolP, on thts ch~ck f~r RPV~n hundr~d 

dollar!!, Exhlbft E·l52, wh~rP d~ you •• do you 

recall wher~ you wpre when that check waR ohysicall~ 

ore11~nt~d to 0. P. Carrillo? 

wher~ I wall emoloypd tn B~navfd~s and I don't know 

if I ~ave it to him therP or ~avP it to him in 

Q But ft was not at Benavides Imolement and Hard-

ware Store? 

0 Now, w~th rPROPCt to check Exhibit 151, a ch~ck 

in the amnunt of three hundrPd and stx dollars. 

what oromoted you to make this check for three 

A I knew therP waR three hundrPd and s•~ dollar!! left 

&om the chPck I ~ot from the cnunty fnr one thou-

!land and "•"' dolll!lr~ so on that day he camP around 

and Rafd he want~d n check fnr th~ re!lt of the 

money so I madP the chPck fnr thP rest of the 

monf'y. 

Q ARain, that is 0. P. Carrilln camP by? 
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A Y~s. ~fr. 

Q H~ cam~ by w~at 1ocatton? 

A Th~ ta~ offic~. 

Q If you r~ca11, wh~t stat~m~nt rltd h~ mak~ to you 

at t~at ti.m~' 

A That h~ sttll had thr~~ hundred and stx dollars 

comin~ from th~ ~r~vious ch~ck or monthly check 

from th~ county, 

Q From tht~ check EY~ibtt E-74? 

A Y~s. str. 

0 So you, in turn, ma_,,, out thts check? 

A Y~s. sir. 

0 Now, I !'!how you Exhtbf.t E-151 whfch has been 

marked and admitt~d into ~vfd~nce and also E-15?.. 

I don't know tf you have donP so or not, can you 

fd~nttfy the endorsement on the bsck 7 

A Y~!'!, str, that is the ~ndnrsement of Mr. 0, P. 

Q 

A 

Q 

Carrillo. 

And what is t~~ basi!'! for your knowlf"d~e that 

that is the Pndorl'!~ment of 0. P. Carrillo? 

He Wlt!'l ,r~~;fd~nt of the school board and I had 

occa!'lion to seE' him sil'Jln~ ,. lot of 

the ~hool whPn I tooi(. the ch~cks to 

he !!{~n~d th~m at hil'l office. 

And for what o.-r·f.od of time did ~ .. 
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8 
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10 

II 

12 

13 

14 
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16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

J..IUl 
I 

----------------------------- i 

or~~ident of the ~chool bn~rr that you ref~ed to, 

that you were in the tay office? 

A I believe ft wa~ from the latter oart of 62 t~ 

the early ~~r.t of 61 un to 

(Discussion off the record.) 

THE MASTER: The recor.c' 8t t>-ti~ ooint 

ts unclear and the wttnpq~ will be Rsked the 

MR. MITCHELL: Can you hRve the wttnf!'SS 

~oeak tnto thE' microohone~ 

THE MASTER: I think it is on. 

MR. MITCHELL: He ls mumbltng, Your 

Honor, and I am hAvin~ trouble hearin~ the 

w{tness. 

THE MASTER: It i~ on -- nh, I see, it 

is on over here but not over there. 

(Di~cussion off the record.) 

Q All right, the "ue~tion, Mr. Coulin~. was during 

whl'lt oertod nf Hme, l f you know, dl~ Mr. 

correction, 0. P. Carrillo, as nrestdent of the 

school board and that you were in the tax office. 

for the basf_s of your knnwled~e "f hiA st~nature. 

A He WI'IS elected in 1962 in Anril and I don't know if 
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16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

hf' went if h~ was nresidf'nt but l,p WAS 

I 

l76t 

nr~~irl~nt in thp 1~tt~r nart of 1962 or th~ Parly 

oart of 196, and h~ servPd ~s nrps{d~nt of the 

board to my best rPco11Pctin to 1967 or 66. 

MR. ODAM: Your Honor, At this tim~ WP 

would move on •• oardon m~. to oara~raoh 10. 

THE MASTER: Excuse m~. a Kathy Wimberly 

MR. FLUSCHE: Yes, •dr, I hav~ 1ust 

sooken to ht>r, Your Honor, a~d shP knows 

MR, ODAM: Is shf' outsiifp? 

MR. FLUSCHE: Ye~. sir. 

MR. ODAM: This i.s off tht> rf'cord just 

a second, olmse, 

(Discussion off th~ rt>cord.) 

T'fF: MASTER: A 11 ri gJ,t, back on thf' 

r~corif. 

0 (By Mr. Odam:) Mr. Coulin~. I sho• you what has 

heen marked as EYhibits E-78, E-79, and ask you if 

you can -- wl,icl, have bPen offereif ani! admitted 

tnto evi.denc~. and ask tf you can identify E-78 

and E-79? 

A E-78 is a bill from the Benavi~~s Imnl~ment and 
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. -- ·~ 

HarrlwarP Comoany to Duval County PrP~inct NumbPr ? I 

2 tn care of Juan LPal, Junior -- or Juan Leal, 

3 an~ a~ain it is written rental of pnu{oment on 

4 county roa~ and hauling calichP. 

s MR. MITCllELL: Parrlon mP, Your Honor, 

6 may I a~k thP witnf!'sR onP nuestion for voir 

7 

8 THE MASTER: YPs, sir. 

9 

10 

11 

12 VOIR DIRE EXAMINATION 

13 

BY MR., MITCHELL: 
14 

~ Q Mr. Coulin~. rio vou have any ~ersona1 knowlPd~e 

16 a~ to the cnmnosition of E-78 and E-79? 

17 A No, c;ir, I h~tvP not, sir. 

18 () All ri~ht. 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

BY MR. ODAM: 
25 

MR. MITCHELL: Thank you, Your Honor. 

EXAMINATION CONTINUED 
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Q Now. whAt is th~ amount of mon~y statedon those 

A Nine hundre~ And ntnety-ftve dnllars, sir. 

Q And wh~tt is th~ dat~ of tho!'IP invoicPs? 

A October the 29th, 1971. 

Q I bPlteve ortor te!'lttmony was th11t Mr. Cleofus 

Gon~alep tPstified that he had or~nare~ these 

and th~y WPrP admitted into PVi~encP, 

Now, my nuestfon to you ts t~e store which 

you ownPd, BenAvid~s Imolement and Hardware, 

does tt have any eouLlment to oerform that haul-

in~ referred to on that job descriotton? 

A No, Air. 

0 Do you know "'het'hpr or not the county has it's 

own enuioment to nerform haul in~? 

A Yes, o:ir. 

(Dtscusston off thP record.) 

Q I 8m sorry, if you 8nswered that nuestion I 

was lnokin~ ~trounrl, I didn't hPar you. 

Do you know whether or nnt thP county itse1f 

has vehicles to oerform haultn~? 

A 'ef, sir, 

Q What tyne of enuioment would that be? 

A They have some dumo true~ sir. 
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·--- --- ------------··--

Q P"rdnn mp? 

A Dumn truckl!.l. 

MR. MITCHELL: On the date now, so that 

the rPcnrrl rPflects it, in 71 of October? 

MR. ODAM: Right, October -- on or 

"bout October nf 1971. 

MR. MITClffiLL: All ri~ht. 

Q I show you what h~s been offf'rP~ and admitted into 

evidencP and "~ for thP nurno~es of thP record, 

can you identify that item? 

A It is claim number !:14 '!.45, Cllti m from thP Benavides 

Imolement and H8rdware Comoany to Duval County 

for nine hundm 8nd ninety-fi.vP dollarR. 

Q N~w, do you know whether or not ~nme date after 

October of 1971, immediately thereafter, you 

recpived a check frnm the county in the amount 

of nine hundrPd and ni.nety-fivP dollArs? 

A Yes, sir. 

0 I show you w~at ha~ been marked ~~ E~hibi.t Number 8 , 

which has been adm~tted into evidence and ask if 

you can identify that i.tem? 

A Yes, sir, that is " check from Duval County for 

0 

the Amount of nine hundred ninety-five dollars. 

And cAn you turn the check or 

over nn the back and is therP 

the en oy of the checkl 

an endorsement or \ 
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~tamo on i.t? 

It fs A rubbPr ~tamo. 

4 A 

:1 

BPnavfdps ImolPmPnt and HardwarP Comoany, BPnavfdPsj 

5 TP3r8S. 

6 Q Do you know who out that stamn on there? 

7 A I dtd, str. 

8 Q Was that a ~tamo -- for what ournosP wa~ that 

9 out on therp? 

10 A I took tt to thP b111nk and dpnosited it at thP 

11 

12 0 And i.!! therP"' cl~t-lm number ldentiff.ed somewherP 

13 nn that E-,rhibtt that you arP referrfn~ to? 

14 A ChPck numbPr is 1490. 

15 THE MASTER: No, thP clAim number. 

16 Q ThP claim numhl'r, I am ~orry. 

17 A Claim number B-2445. 

18 Q I wi.ll :<:how you what has bt'en marked as 

19 ExaminPr's Exhibit E-154, and ask if you can 

20 fdenttfy this itPm? 

~ A That is a check from thP Benavides ImolemPnt and 

22 HardwarP Comoany maderut to 0. P. Carrillo on 

23 Novpmber thf' 15th, 1971. It has my Rl~n8ture. 

24 Q And can you idpnti.fy thP endor!'IE>mf'nt nn the back? 

~ A YeA, str. it Rays for df'oosit, 0. P. Carrillo. 
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Q Can you ident~fy that to be the ~i~nature of 

0. P. C11rrillo? 

A Ye!l!, !'lir. 

Q Now, the what di~ you --

MR. ODAM: I will offer E-154 into 

evfdencP, the ori~inal cooy -- the ori~tnal 

check. 

MR. MITCHELL: Your Honor, our nb1ect~on 

to 154 would run to our b11slc objectfons. I 

will reoeat them if the Court woulrl like. 

THE MASTE:• The fnur, I think, there 

are four baPic ob1ection!l!. 

MR. MITCHELL: That'!'! ri~ht. 

THE ~STER: They ~re overruled ~nd the 

~heck fs admftted. 

Q E-154, the check for nine hun~re~ ninety-five 

doll~r!'l, do you recall what, after you made the 

check out fnr nfne hundred ninety-five dollars, 

what you did with the r.heck after you --

A I handed it over to 0. P. C~trrlllo, sir. 

Q You oerRonally pave him the check' 

A Yet~, sir. 

Q Do you recall where you were at th11t ti~e? 

A No, sir, I don't know if ft was tn the tax office 

or out on the street, I don't know, sir. 
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Q Do you reca11 if it waA in the BPn~vides !mole-

ment and Hardw~re Store? 

A No, 9ir, it wa~n't in thP 9tore. 

Q Now, wa9 th"f. ~ check for ni_ne hundrp~ and ninety-

fivP doll111rs, to78~ t'1iR for Any ~nterelt tht'lt 0, P. 

C~trrillo ha~ in thP Benavtde~ Imolement and Hard-

A No, ~tr. 

0 Ant1 the check, is t t for services oerfo rmed by 

0, P. Carrtllo? 

A No, !': ir. 

Q A 11 r~ ~ht. 

MR. ODA~: Now, for the ourooses of 

the bill of P~cP.otion: "Is thil'l Another 

e~t'lm~le of one of the checks t~at Ramiro 

Ct~~rrilln asked you to m~tke nut to 0. P. 

Carrllln"? 

A Yes, ~ir. 

MR. MITC~ELL: Well, Jud~e we renew 

nur ob1ections to that testimony, whether 

it ts offere~ for the btl1 or not because 

I believe, and I want to be very careful 

how I ~t11te t'1ts, I beliPve that what ts 

h~tnoenedin~. it ts obvious what is haooen-

in~ is under the e~is of the bill of excentton 

t--
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2 not comnetent and nrevfously excluded. 

3 THE MASTER: Wt"ll, tt wits not offered 

4 and I under!'ltllnd i.t -- well, the objection 

5 

6 mony ts offered in this heartn~. but liS I 

7 have s11i~ "reviously, you m~y have a full 

8 bill. 

9 MR. ODAM: Yes, str, and that was only 

10 intended for the nurnose of continuity. 

11 THE MAS'JE: Yeos, !"ir, 

12 MR. ODAM: Of the earlieor stateomt"nt 

13 and discussions we had about heArsay and 

14 bill of t"xceontions. 

15 

(Discussion off the rt"cord.) 
16 

17 0 (By Mr. Odam:) Mr. CouHnJ!;, you have testified 

18 thus far wtth resnect to naraJ!;ranhs 7, 8, 9 and 10 

19 2eoner~tlly ItS I understand {t ceortatn checks were 

20 made out by you to 0. P. Carrillo, ts that correct? 

22 0 And thu!'! f11r wp have talkE'd 11bout four.\ chf'cks? 

23 A RiJ!;ht. 

24 Q Ef.ther machlnf' cmieA or oriJ!;im•l co,f.P.s tn evi-

25 dence. 
I ------r--
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On any occa~ion, durin~ thP ~Priod of time 

around thesP dstP~, tn 1971, did you havP occa-

Aion to make out~her checks to 0. P. Carrillo? 

MR. ODAM: I will a~k thP court r~~ort~r 

to mark thP~P ~lease. 

(Msrk~d for identiftcatfon by thP 

rP~ort~r as E~hfblt E-155, E-156 and E-157, 

and E-158.) 

Q Mr. Cou1ing, I ~how ~ -u ori~inal checks mark~d 

E-155, E-156, 157 ~nd 158, and ask you if you 

A YPs, ~ir, thPy arP all chPcks made from thP 

to 0. P. Carrillo. 

Q And this fR your ~~~nature on the checks? 

A YP~, ~tr. 

Q And turning the checks over, I will ARk if you 

ran ldPntify the endorsem~nt on thPRP checks, 

and identify them with res~ect also to the 

E:ll'hlbi.t number. 

A On 155, no, sfr, I cannot Identify that Pndorse-

mPnt. 

Q Okay. On 156? 
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157, that ts 0. P. Carrillo anrl 158 ts C. P. 

Carrillo. 

4 Q And on 155 th~r~ a~n~ars to b~ two nam~s on th~r~. 

5 

6 A Th~ f~t one is 0. P. Carrillo and th~ next on~ ~s 

7 
Jo~~ Sa~n!'. 

8 Q That's th~ ton onP, 0. P. Cl!lrrillo, I tl-ti.nk you 

9 t~~tifiprl --well, thl!lt is s'milar, but cl!ln you 

10 tf'll if that is 0. P. Carrillo's signatur~? 

II A That is ~tmilar, but t don't tl-tfnk it is --

12 Q Your t~stimony would b~ tl-tl!lt it would not bf' thf' 

13 si~nature of 0. P. Carrillo? 

14 A No. 

IS Q All riJ.?;l-tt. 

16 MR. ODAM: Your Honor. wP off~r in 

17 ~vid~nce E-155, 156, 157 and 158. 

18 

19 
(Hand~d to Couns~l.) 

20 MR. ODAM: Arthur, th~se ar~ th~ ones 

21 

22 MR. MITCHELL: In view of th~ witness' 

23 testimony, Your Honor, in regards 158, we 

24 would ob.1f!d: to it's l!ldmi.ssi.on on the grounrl 

25 it is being endorsement by Cash Store, Abel 
I 

--~r-----------------------------------------------------------t--
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h•r• and in addition to our nrior runn1n~ 

oh1ection!:, 

Now, a~ tn 15.5, Your Hrmor, we would 

object in vfew of the witness' testimony 

a~atn tht it ~noears to be si~ned by some 

other oerson, it would be ~~~atertat and 

trrPlevant, certainly h~arsay, as regards 

t~is wftnrss, and in addition our other 

!'Jb1ecttons. 

Now, Your h,Jnor -- Pardon me, Your 

Honor, I would like to consult with my 

client. 

(Discussion off the record.) 

MR. MITCHELL: Now, !'Jn 156 and 157 we 

nb1ect on the ~rounds of hearsay, Your Honor, 

and that in addition to the oreviously objec-

tfons, beyond the formal sc!'J~P, beyond the 

second amended and related to non-1udiclat 

acts. 

THE MASTER: You mel'ln ftrst amtmded? 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, sir. 

THE MASTER: Thto ob1ectiom; are over-

rultod 111nd the E~htbtts are admitted, 
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Mr. Coulin~. 1ust for my own ~urnosPs, 

E-158 you sai_d is siJ!;neod by you? 

(HandP~ to thP ~itness.) 

THE WITNESS: Yeos, sir, on the bottom 

here, yP!';, f!ir. 

THE MASTER: Yeo,;, !>ir, hut i.t does not 

anoear that the nayee, end thP balancP of 

the check is madeo out by you? 

A No, str. 

Tl-tE 1\.fASTER: W"s thl'tt mad eo out by you? 

THE WITNESS: No, si.r. 

THEMASTER: Wf'll, who madeo 

THE WITNESS: I ~ave this check blank 

tn Mr. 0. P. Carrillo wi.th 1ust my si~natureo 

nn thtt bottom. 

THE MASTER: Thank you. 

MR. MITCHELL: Pardon me, Counsel, are 

those ,;t~ttP<l to me f.n connection wi_ th number -

oaraF,rl'loh number 10 Rti 11? 

MR. ODAM: These wnuld be in rf'lati.on 

to 0ara~raohs 7 throu~h -- actually 7 throueh 

12, but moreo soecifically the -- thtty would 

~o to nara~ranh 7, 8, 9 and lJ. 

MR. MITCHELL: T"tf>n wp nlPitd surnrtse 
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an~ beyonrl the scone tf they are 7, 8, 9 

and 10, Your Honor. 

MR. ODAM: I mtp,ht ~lar~fy for the 

r~cord, and for the Master, and for Counsel, 

that the ournose of admission of these 

checks and the nuroose of go~ng ~nto the 

nuestfons that would be fotthcomin~. woul~ 

be the show the ~eneral scheme of makin~ 

out checks by Mr. Couling to Mr. Carrillo. 

It would be to show th~ mot~ve, the 

scheme and involved in 7 through 12, but 

narticularly 7, 8, 9 and 10. 

Now, we are not Rmendtng our oleadings, 

we are not statin~ that these amounts were 

also taken for nurnos~s of the netition, for 

removal ournoses, we are 1u~t simnly showing 

the scheme of Mr. Couling makin~ out the 

checks to Mr. Carrillo as he testified to. 

MR. MITCHELL: They go beyond the scooP 

then, Your Honor, and certainly we olead 

surorisP, I believe that would be satis-

factory. 

THE MASTER: Th~ obiecti.on h overruled. 

I don't know if I said for tte record that 

Exhibits 155 throu~h 158 would be admitted, 
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but thE'y arE'. 

Q (By Mr. Odam:) All rt~ht, Mr. Coul~ng, 155 ts 

A chE-ck tn the amount of one thousand two hundred 

about Rome of thE' checks ~nd to clartfy for my 

o~n ~uroo~e~ on the front of thE' chE-ck, did you 

oer~onally ffll in the ~mount of onE' thousand twn 

A Yes, "tr. 

0 What, if you nE8ll, was the basis -- that is June 2 , 

1971, of making out a check for one thousand two 

hundred dollars to Mr. -- or to Jud~e 0. P. 

Card llo? 

A I believE' I ~ot a check from thE' county for that 

~mount or close to ft. 

MR. ~ITCHELL: Nn"'', "''e wcul d ob j E'C t t n 

that answer, Your Honor. It would be ~oecu-

lllttion Rnd conJecture what hf> would believe. 

unless he had some oersonal knowled~e. It 

iR certainly very critical. 

Q Well, the check was made out fnr one thousand 

two hundred dollars. The nuesti.on was why was 

the -- why did you make out a check for one thou-

sand two hundred dollars and then let me restate 

that ~uestlon to you and ~hat is your reoly to 
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why you madP out th~t check for twelve hundrerl 

2 dollar!'!? 

3 A w~ll, every che~k that I msde was because of 

4 that money from the county, ~revtous to makin~ 

5 thesP checks, sir. 

6 Q N~w. the check for one thousand two hundred 

7 ~oll8r•, is tt for work nerformed by 0. P. Carrtllo 

8 

9 A No, s t r. 

10 Q Was it for An interest he has in thP store? 

11 A No, sir. 

12 Q Was it --well --

13 MR. ODAM: Th&t I!! enou~h on that. 

14 Q Nnw, 156, can you ~tate what ts written on the 

15 check down in the lower lefthand side? 

16 A It says store counter for the Carrillo dru~ store. 

17 Q And what is thr amount of money on that check? 

18 A One thousand dollars, sir. 

19 Q Dfd you write in the one thousand dollars? 

20 

21 Q And you wrote in the name of 0. P. Carrillo? 

22 A Yes, sir. 

23 0 And now, can you PYnlain --

24 MR. ODAM· Strike that. 

25 Q Did you make out the descrtnti.on down thE>re about 
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2 A YP~. ~i.r. 

3 0 Can you e7~1Atn to the court why you wrntP on th~ 

4 

5 ~tort>? 

6 A WPll, I had to wrftP somethtn~ on the chPck so I 

1 could r~membPr what it ~as. 

8 Q Now, that !Utyfl ~torE' counter. 

9 A YPs, ~tr, thPrP was no store counter nurchased 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 
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from 0. P. Carrillo, sir. 
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Q Then why did you put store counter on the check? 

2 A I don 1 t re member, s ir • 

3 Q But there was no store counter purchased? 

4 A No, sir. 

s Q onE-56, would your testimony be, as to why you 

6 made out a check for one thousand dollars --

7 MR. MITCHELL: On 156. 

8 MR. ODAM: Yes. 

9 Q On E-156, why did you make out a check number E-156 

10 for one thousand dollars? 

11 A I had gotten a checK ~rom the county from Precinct 

12 Number 2 and made it out for that reason. 

13 Q This is a check in May, 1971, and E-155 was in 

14 May, 1971, and E-157 in July. 

15 Did you fill in the amount of money there, is 

16 that your signature on the nine hundred ninety-

17 two d:>llars? 

18 A Yes. 

19 Q Did you put in the name of 0. P. ,;arrillo? 

20 A Yes, sir. 

21 Q Could you describe what the check is written for? 

22 A It says tubing and the store didn •t buy tubing for 

23 Judge o. P. Carrillo. 

24 Q Why did you put tubing on there? 

25 A I can•t recall, but ~re was no tubing purchased at 
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all, 

Q Why would you make out a check in July for nine 

hundred ninety-two dollars? 

A I had to have received the check from the county 

for close to that amount from Precinct 2. 

Q And fina~ly, I show you a~eck which I think the 
I 

Master referred to earlier as E-158. 
I 

You ident1fie4 

your signature on there. 

Can you state, if you know, who filled in the 

amount and the payee on that check? 

A NJ, sir, I cannot be positive. 

Q You did not fill in the amount? 

A No, sir. 

Q This is what date? 

A November, 1971. 

Q And can you state why you would make out a check 

totallng blank? 

A No, sir, he was going to buy something he needed 

and I made him a check in blank and signed it. 

Q Do you .call what you did with this check? 

A I gave it to Judge 0, P. Carrillo in blank. 

Q You gave that check to 0, P. Carrillo in blank? 

A Yes, sir. 

MR. ODAM: I move, at this time, Your 

Honor, to paragraph eleven. 
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THE MASTER: All right, sir. 

2 Q I show you what the reporter has marked as E-84 

3 and ask you if you can identify that for the record 

4 A Yes, sir, this is a check from the Duval County 

5 water Conservation and Reclamation District made 

6 payable to Benavides Implement and Hardware in the 

7 amount of five thousand six hundrJd twenty-five 

8 dollars and is dated January 11, 1972. 

9 Q Do you recall personally having received that check 

10 A Yes, sir. 

II Q And can you identify un the back of the check any 

12 endorsement? 

13 A Yes, it is stamped by the rubber stamp and I wrote 

14 on the bottom, for deposit. 

15 Q Can you identify who caused that check -- strike 

16 that. 

17 Can you identify on that check who caused that 

18 check to be issued? 

~ A No, sir, I don't recall seeing those invoices. 

20 Q Are there acy other signatures on that check 1 

21 A Yes, sir, the secretary of the board, Mr. Jose 

22 Tovar and D. c. Chapa. 

~ Q Do you know Mr. Jose Tovar7 

~ A Yes, sir, I know him. 

~ Q And can you identify his signature? 
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A Yes, sir, I can, 

1781 I 

2 Q And D. C. Chapa? 

3 A Yes, sir, 

4 Q Do you know that to be his signature? 

5 A Yes. 

6 Q D. C, Chapa, is he related to Judge o. P, Carrillo? 

7 A He is his father. 

8 

9 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

MR. ODAM: Exhibit E-84 is offered in 

evidence, 

MR, MITCHELL: Judge, it is all stapled 

down and the t. •• :1orsement is critical, May 

I have permission to unstaple it, at least 

one end? 

THE MASTER: Yes. 

MR, MITCHELL: Our only objection to 

this exhibit would run to our general 

objection to the previous exhibits before 

the Court. I can restate them if the 

Court desires, 

THE MASTER: You are talking about the 

basic four? 

MR. MITCHELL: Right. 

THE MASTER: The objection is overruled 

and the exhibit is admitted, Exhibit E-84, 

(Examiner's Exhi0it E-84 was admitted 
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into evidence.) 
2 

3 Q (By Mr. Odam:) I have before you, Mr. Couling, 

4 E-84, a Xerox copy of the same check, and I refer 

5 you to the lower left-hand portion. Can you read 

6 into the record the description of the purpose of 

7 that check? 

8 A For invoices 2~9, 290, 291 and 292 to Benavides. 

9 Q What would -- well, what would be the general 

10 description or reason that was placed on there? 

II A I can't tell you for 3ure. It could be Benavides, 

12 Texas, or Benavides Implement and Hardware. 

13 Q 289, 290, 291 and 292, did your store do work for 

14 Duval County water district for those invoices 

15 and those invoices would be related to? 

16 A No, not that I know of. 

17 MR. MITCHELL: I object on the grounds 

18 the invoices would be the best evidence, 

19 THE MASTER: The objection is overruled. 

~ Q The invoices, number 289 through 292, is it your 

21 testimony that your store did not p~orm work 

22 pursuant to those invoice numbers? 

23 A No, sir. 

U Q Can you state why those invoices vould be numbered 

25 on this check? 

--~--- -T~ 
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A 

2 should be invoiced. 

3 Q Did you actually and personally receive an origind 

4 check, the one the Master has in his hand? 

5 THE MASTER: No, it is now in front of 

6 him. 

7 THE WITNESS: Yes, sir. 

8 Q What did you do with that check? 

9 A I believe I deposited it in the First State Bank of 

10 San Diego. 

II Q Who did you receive t..-:1t check from? 

12 A I don't knowwhether it was from o. P. Carrillo or 

13 Rogelio GuaJardo, Jr. 

14 Q Could you spell into the record how you spell that 

IS name? 

16 MR. MITCHELU Rogelio is R-o-g-e-1-i-o 

17 and GuaJardo, G-u-a-j-a-r-d-o. 

18 Q ¢:ly M r • Od am : ) Your testimony is, o. P. Carrillo 

19 or his nephew, Rogelio GuaJardo, gave you that 

20 check? 

21 A Yes. 

~ Q You stated you deposited that check in the First 

23 State Bank of san Diego? 

~ A Ye~ sir. 

~ Q And again, I think we discussed this earlier, the 

--~~----------------------------------------------------------
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endorsement on the back is what? 

2 A Benavides Implement and Hardware Company, and I 

3 wrote myself, for deposit. 

4 Q So you personally endorsed that check? 

s A Yes, sir. 

6 Q Now, if it was your testimony that no work was 

7 performed pursuant to these invoi~e numbers, could 

8 you state if you know why th<. \fiter district would 

9 make out a check for you in that amount? 

10 A Yes, a week or so earlier, o. P. came by and told 

11 me --

12 MR. MITCHELL: We object to this, any 

13 conversation between o. P. and the witness 

14 would be hearsay and beyond the scope of 

15 the specifications. 

16 THE MASTER: Overruled. 

~ Q Could you state what Judge 0, P. Carrillo told you? 

n A Yes, that the water district was going to give him 

' 19 a check so he could buy a station wagon with it. 

~ Q Where were you at that time this conversation took 

21 place? 

~ A Either in my office or riding around in a car, I 

23 

24 

25 

can•t tell you for sure. 

THE MASTER: Off the record. 

Discussion off the record,) 
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THE MASTER: Back on the record. 

2 Q I show you what has been marked as Exhibit E-85, 

3 which has previously been admitted, and ask you 

4 if you can identify this? 

s A Yes, it is a check from the store with my signature 

6 on the batom and the date or January 13, 1972. 

7 MR. MITCHELL: Excuse ~1e, may I see that 

8 THE MASTER: Yes. 

9 Q And the check you are referring to there, E-85, 

10 was it -- you actually made that check out? 

11 A I signed it and wrote the date on it. 

12 Q Who is the payee on that check? 

13 A The First State Bank and Trust or Rio Grande 

14 City, Texas. 

15 Q Did you fill that out? 

16 A No, sir, I didn't fill out the amount of the check, 

17 either. 

n Q Did you make the check out ln blank? 

19 A Yes. 

~ Q What did you do with that check made out in blank? 

21 A Turned it over too. P. Carrillo, str. 

22 Q N-:>w, you made reference to that check, do you have 

23 any idea as to what that check is for? 

~ A It states one station wagon. 

~ Q W-:>uld that be the same station wagon o. P. Carrillo 
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talked to you about before the check was made out? 

2 A Yes, sir. 

3 Q Are you familiar with that particular station wagon? 

4 A Yes, I saw it. 

5 Q Can you describe what that station wagon was? 

6 A It was a Pontiac. 

7 Q Did you ever personally see Judge o. P. Carrillo 

8 driving it? 

9 A Yes. 

10 Q Once the check was made out in blank, you sated 

11 you gave it to o. P. ~arrillo? 

12 A Yes, sir. 

13 THE MASTER: What is the exhibit number? 

14 MR. MITCHELL: 85. 

15 Q I show you what has been marked as E-88 and ask you 

16 if you can identify that item? 

17 A Yes, sir, this is a bank deposit from the Benavides 

18 Implement and Hardware dated January 13, 1972, 

19 in the amount of five thousand six hundred twenty-

20 five dollars. 

21 Q Now, is that a deposit slip for the check from the 

22 water district? 

~ A Yes, sir. 

24 Q. Where you testified earlier you deposited the check 

25 in the First State Bank? 
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A Yes, sir. 

THE MASTER: What is the exhibit number, 

Mr. Couling? 

THE WITNESS: E-88. 

THE MASTER: Is this an appropriate time 

for a break, Mr. Odam? 

MR. ODAM: Yes, but I would like to offe 

in evidence certified copies of the document 

of title on a station wagon. These papers 

have been -- are tracing the title on a 

station wagon "nd speak for themselves and 

have been filled out and received by the 

Texas Highway Department. 

I offer them in evidence and they 

have been marked as E-90, and I offer them 

at this time. They are certified on the 

back from the Texas Highway Department. 

The certification is dated 

October 6, 1975. 

THE MASTER: Well, let's take a recess. 

Are these just copies? 

MR. ODAM: Yes, sir. 

THE MASTER: Well, we will let Mr. 

Mitchell examine them and then be back at 

12 o'clock. 
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(Short reces~ taken.) 

THE MASTER: E-90 h~td been offered and 

handed to Coun~el. 

MR. MITCqELL: We ob1ect to i.t, Your 

Hnnor, on thP ba~i~ of hP~tr~ay, no connection, 

im~rooerly aut~entfc~ted, beyond the sco~e 

of formal ano amended, and snecffiealty beyond 

the word'n~ ~f Roman -- excuse me, Jud~e 

THE MASTER: I think it ts ll you ~tre on. 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes. o:ir, I believe it 

is, too, ye~. ~ir, Your Honor, beyond 11. 

THE MASTER: Now, I renuire, when you 

say tm~rooerly aut~ent{('8ted, to tell me 

in what manner it ts tmorooerly authentt-

C'ltttod. 

MR. MITCHELL: Well, Your Honor, there 

is no testimony as to the orf"dicate fact 

of where it came from. and I assume that the 

offer ret if'~ rm that certi ficste, and as 

to the sufficiency of thP CE'rtiftcate, that, 

we will rha11en~e. 

THE MASTER: In whst w~y? 

MR.MITCHELL: Incomolf't~. I don't know 

from oersonal knowled~e is that the one on 
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THE MASTER: It i!'l this onr. (Indicating. 

MR. Tl.fiTCHELL: Oh, I dtrln't see it. It 

mi2ht be in comoliance with the statute, I 

was looktn2 ~t this me, Jud~e Meyer. 

(Dtscu~sion off thP record.) 

MR. MITCHELL: You,_.. Honor, I simoly 

must olead "~2norance, I don't know tf that 

certificate on the bAck n~ge of nage 8 of 

the Exhfbtt ts sufficient or not and for 

th~t reason ~e would level the ob1ectlon of 

imnroner authentication in answer to the 

Court's nuestion, that would be the rea~. 

THE MASTER: All ri2ht, tl,e obiectf.on i_s 

overruled and Exhibit 90 ts admitted. 

MR. ODAM: ,Your Honor, ~·e wi 11 Rteo 

&Ride on Mr. Cnuli.n2 herP for a moment 

because thi~ other witness we would like tn 

take out of order is from Alice and Mr. 

Flusche is getting her. 

THE Tl.fASTF.R: That is fine, I think every-

body understood th~t. 

MR. ODAM: Do you want to watt on 

JudJ!:e Carrf 11 o? 
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anothf'r bank' 

Q An~ what bank wa~ t~at? 

A That waA the First Nat~onal ~ank in Alice. 

the summer of 197~. wherf' were you f'mnloye~ at 

th11t time? 

A At the Bank nf South Texa~. 

Q Now, fir~t of 1111. I called you on the tele~hone 

and asked you to come over here voluntarily, and 

I have tol~ you t~at L ~nu1d furnish you with • 

Aubnoena whenever you got here, ts that correct? 

A Yes, str. 

0 An~ unfortunately, we have run out of blank forms 

factory wtth you if I furnish you one for thf' 

bank records after this hearing? 

A Ye:o:, :&:fr. 

MR. MITCHELL: And we would have no 

objection to that orncee~ing, Judge Meyer. 

Q Now, have you been re~ueste~ recently to renro• 

duce certain items relating to the bank account 

nf 0. P. Carrillo' 

A YPs, cdr. 

Q And ~o you remember who made that re~uest? 
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A It w~~ out of Au~ttn, I don't r~m~mb~r who. 

0 Dfrl thpy furnf~h ynu with ~ ~ub~o~na? 

A YPS, sir, w~ ~ad a ~ubooPna on filP. 

0 And w'ftat Wl'l~ rE""Ur!"tprl in th~t !!Uboopna? 

A That WE' m~ke ('O'I'l'fP!" nf 1111 of thP i. tt>ms and thP 

!'!t&tPmE"nts on 0. P. Csrrillo. 

Q All rf~ht now. snd rlid yru do that'? 

A WE" mad,. CO'I)ip~ of 1111 of the d(>nosit slt'D"" and 

stlttements. Wp did not mAkP cnoiPs of thP chPcks. 
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Q Now, you and I have had occasion, just within the 

2 last ~ew minutes, to go over certain items shown 

3 to you, and do you recognize those as having been 

4 reproduced under your supervision? 

s A Yes, sir. 

s Q What relationship is there between the First State 

7 Bank o~ Alice and your current em~loyer? 

a A Two years ago, the Firat Stat.e Bank of Alice 

9 name was changed. 

10 Q I see. At the time that you made these items I 

11 have shown to you, \~a.tt was your position? 

12 A I was assistant cashier. 

13 Q And in that position, were you custodian o~ the 

14 records? 

IS A Yes, sir. 

a Q I am going to show you ~our items marked E-66, 

17 E-70, E-77 and E-83, and ask you to look at those. 

18 Now, will you tell the Court, ~irst o~ all, 

19 do you recognize those as being the copies that 

20 were made under your suprvision? 

21 A Yes, sir. 

~ Q Would you describe to the Court the mechanical 

23 means by which you used to reproduce those? 

24 A When checks from deposits and are made, we film 

2S these on microfilm. We take individual pictures 
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of them ourselves, 

Q Did you do that in this instance? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Let me ask you this. Referring to E-85, it depicts 

a deposit in the amount of nine hundred ninety-five 

dollars and immediately above it ts a reproduction 

of a two dollar check. Can you recognize the 

signature on that two dollar check? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Whose signature is that? 

A 0, P. Carrillo's, 

Q I show you what has been marked as E-66, which 

purports to be a deposit slip in the amount of 

one thousand nine hundred ninety-one dollars. 

There are two checks below that and I will ask you 

if you recognize those signatures? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Whose signatures are those? 

A Mr. Carrillo's. 

MR. MITCHELL: Pardon me, may I ask 

counsel a question? 

THE MASTER: Yes, sir. Would you read 

those exhibit numbers to me, please? 

MR. MITCHELL: E-66, 7·), 77 and 83. 

Your Honor, the purpose of my 
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question is demonstrated by E-66. 

May I ask counsel, is he offering 

by that one number all the exhibits on this 

Exhibit E-66? 

:·IR. FLUSCHE: Primarily and only for 

the deposit slip. My question is relating 

to the identification of th; signature and 

was using these for merely further 

au then t i ca t1 on. 

MR. MITCHELL: Well, E-77 has a check 

to Marshall St~Jios from Ramiro Carrillo 

and Brothers and I see no relevancy to that 

check. I certainly object to that on the 

grounds as having no relevancy. 

MR. FLUSCHE: Well, it could be taken 

off. 

MR. MITCHELL: Likewise, I object on 

E-83, unle as counsel can make it relevant, 

theVFW check in the amount of two dollars 

and the check on the bottom from someone to 

someone else. All I need is some statement 

of counsel, if it is relevant, and likewise, 

Judge Meyers -- may I address to counsel a 

question? 

THE MASTER: Yes. 
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MR. MITCHELL: On 70, what are you 

offering there, this thing at the top,does 

that have anything to do with that? 

MR. FLUSCHE: I don't know. 

MR. MITCHELL: I would object to that 

if it has no relevancy. 

THE MASTER: Well, there are some 

extraneous instruments, Mr. Flusche, whtn 

I think you could take a pair of scissors 

and cut out. 

MR. FLUSC'.'"l!:: I will agree to do that. 

MR. MITCHELL: May I request counsel 

pobt out to me which ones he is not offering? 

THE MASTER: Most of Uem have a red 

mark on them. 

MR. FLUSCHE: There is a red mark to 

indicate the items germaine to this hearing. 

MR. MITCHELL: I see. 

All right. Then, Your Honor, with 

that statement and with leave of the Court, 

I assume on 66 the checks will be cut off 

that e x:hlbi t? 

MR. FLUSCHE: Yes. 

MR. MITCHELL: And on 70, the document 

at the top, is that correct? 

UIATHAM & ASSOCIATES 
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MR. FLUSCHE: Yes. 

2 MR. MITCHELL: And I assume, further, 

3 that on E-77, the check on the bottom will 

4 be cut off? 

5 THE MASTER: That ls Mr, Flusche 1 s 

6 agreement. It doesn•t matter to me, since 

7 there is no jury, it doesn't matter if he 

8 offers the pertinent things, but if you want 

9 to keep the record clean, that is fine. 

10 MR. MITCHELL: Or it could be covered. 

11 We object to 1~, to the others and the offer 

12 of 66, 77 and 83, to the extent that these 

13 are marked in red on the grounds of hearsay 

14 and irrelevant and immaterial and no proper 

15 authentication. 

16 THE MASTER: The objection is overruled 

17 and the exhfults are admitted, 

18 MR, FLUSCHE: I believe that is all, 

19 

20 

21 

22 
BY MR. MITCHELL: 

23 

U Q Do you have a subpoena with which these documents 

25 were reproduced? 
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A Yes, we have it at the bank. 

2 Q May I request that you make a copy of that for the 

3 purpose of future testimony? 

4 A Yes. 

5 ~ N~w, the ones that have been reproduced, that is 

6 the ones marked in red, who requested they be 

7 reproduced? 

8 A It was on the subpoena from A~stin. 

9 Q It was in connection with the subpoena that I 

10 asked you about? 

11 A Yes, this 1s the one y vu asked me about. 

~ Q Looking at those exhibits, and let's take 66, 

13 what is that document relecting on the ones in 

14 red? l believe you identified that as a deposit 

15 slip? 

16 A Yes, sir. 

11 Q And did you personally search the records for that 

18 document? 

~ A Yes, sir. 

~ Q N w, on looking at E-70, I am referring only to 

21 the one marked in red, what is that? 

~ A A deposit slip. 

D Q Did you search that out personally? 

u A Yes, sir. 

~ Q Looking at E-77, please, only the ones marked in 
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red, what is that document? 

2 A Also a deposit slip. 

3 Q Did you search that document out and photograph 

4 it? 

5 A Yes, sir, 

6 Q Now, if you please, the last, Exhibit 83. 

1 A This one? 

8 Q Yes. Now, referring, please, to the one in the 

9 middle, what is that? 

10 A Also a deposit slip. 

11 Q I will ask you the s ..... 1e question, did you search 

12 that out and reproduce it? 

13 A Yes, sir. 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

MR. MITCHELL: I have no further 

questions of this witness, Your Honor. 

THE MASTER: Are you working on a 

subpoena form for her? 

MR. FLUSCHE: Yes, Iwill have it typed 

up and give it to her before she leaves, 

THE MASTER: Do you want me to sign it? 

MR. FLUSCHE: Yes, sir. 

THE MASTER: You !18ke sure it is typed 

properly. 

MR. FLUSCHE: Yea, sir. 

THE MASTER: Do you have any other 
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ques tiona? 

MR. FLUSCHE: I have none. 

THE MASTER: Thank you, ma•am, you may 

step down. 
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RUDOLFO COULING, 

! ! ! ! ! ! ! I l Q ! (continued) 

BY MR, ODAM: 

TqE MASTER: You may orocPPrl, Mr. Odfim, 

Q Mr. Coultn~. I rE>mtnd you that you arP st111 undPr 

osth. 

A YPs, sir. 

0 A~ nrPvlously -- thP. osth still ~nnl1P~ to your 

tPstimony hE>rP as orPvtously ,.,hE>n you te!t:l fi E>d 

today and thP day bpforE>, 

A YPs, c:ir. 

MR. ODAM: WP movP now to oar~~ranh 

numbPr l'. 

Q I show you, Mr. Coultn~. what has bPE>n markPd as 

Eysminer's EYhtbit 91 and 92 ~nd ask if you csn 

fdpntify thPSP itPms, 91 and 9?? 

ImolE>mPnt and Hardware Comoany for thP amount of 

onp thoussnd and sty dnllsrs. 

Q All rf~ht snd --
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A Rental on tractor -- rental enuinm~nt and --

Q That is workin~ --

A Workin~ on county road. 

Q Mr. Gon~alez has already testified that h~ f~llPd 

out the ti.cket. My nuE>sti.on t" you i.s dlcJ B~na-

v!des Imnlem~nt and Hard1"Rrf" Comnany o~rform for 

the county of Duval Precinct Numher ? the work 

d~scribed on that stat~m~nt invoice E-91' 

A No, R~r. 

MR. MITCHELL: E~cusr me, that is to 

Q All ri~ht, to your oersonal knowl~d~e. did your 

comoany nerform that work? 

A No, str. 

Q Dtd you comoany hav~ any r~nt~l eoutnment to be 

rented to th~ county? 

A No, sir. 

Q E-91 and E-9? orl"vi.ously adml tted into evlc'lencE> 

and went into E-9~ which is a claim 1ecket. 

Now, the c1atm jacket is -- ran you identify 

the numb~r at the ton? 

A C290R. 

Q And I'll a~k you if you can id~ntify what is 
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A Y~~. Rir, it {R A ch~ck from DuvAl Cou~y claim '""'I 
2 numb~r C290R for th~ Amount of on~ thouRand and I 

~d ~ flollare. 

4 Q All rt~ht. 

5 A Payable to B~navirlr~ Imol~ment And HArdwsrd Com-

6 nany. 

7 Q All ri~ht, cAn you identify th~ --

8 A The ~ndor~ement, ye~. ~~r. 

9 Q All rl~ht. 

10 A Y~!':, ~ir, thi.~ it<: my endorsement. 

11 Q Now, thfs WA!l in De~~nber of 197'-. Do you recall 

12 ~enerally havin~ r~ceived a check in the Amount 

13 

14 A Yet<: , t<: i r • 

15 MR. ODAM: Now, 94, Your Honor, Is a 

16 ~ero~ cooy of a check. A!O: a matt~r of fact 

17 THE MASTER: Yet<:, It is offpred and 

18 Admitted In the strin~ nf E~hiblts ~tartfn• 

19 with 57. 

20 MR. ODAM: Those wer~ in connection 

21 with Mr. Karl Williams' tet<:timony, too. 

THE MASTER: Yes, ~t fs fn evidence. 

~ Q Ne~t. I'll ~how you what has been mArked and 

24 entered Into evtdPnce as E-95 --

25 MR. ODAM· Correction, strike that. 

--+--------------------------~-,~ 
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Q I'll ~~ow you what ha~ b~Pn markPd a~ E-95 and 

A~k you if you can identify thf~ item? 

A Y~~. ~ir, this fs ~ bfll from -- ~rpoarpd from 

B~navid~~ Im~lPmPnt and Hard~ArP Com~a~y dated 

Odnber thP 27th -- no, D~cPmbPr the 27th, 1972 to 

Duval County Precinct Number 2 for rPntal of 

winch number 1 and one truck, " ch.mn truck numbf"r 

10. 

Q And can you fdf"ntify who out that writln~ on that 

A Th1tt i.s my handwrf.tin"-, ~ir. 

Q Now, what fs the ~tmount of monPy statt>d on thert>? 

A Onp thousand snd ei~ht£>en dollars and ten cPnts. 

Q And you flllf"d out that amount of money? 

A Yes, "; r. 

Q Work oerformf"r on rental on winch number two and 

truck and dumo number 2. Can you ~Pscrlhe the 

work that was oerformed for Duval County with 

rPSOPCt to t~At job? 

~ A Thf"re wa~ nowork oPrformPd for Duval County. 

21 Q Wh~tt f ~ your tf"!'ltimony wl th re~of"ct to why you 

"ut th1tt descrlot~on on that ti.cket? 

23 A WhPn this ticket waq made, I wa!'l told by 0. P. 

24 

25 

Carrillo that hP had ourchltsf"d two D-R trltctors 

ltnd I hsd to make b{lls to Pred.nct NumbPr 2 so 
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~~ ~nu1d D•V th~ r~nt fnr th~ treetnr~ to Pl~tn~ 

0 Nnw, ~ft~r you f111~tf nut th1!1 fnvo1rf", v~et d1d 

vnu do v1t~ that fnvo1e~? 

MR. MITCRELL: W•tt ~ mtnut~. that 

ob1~et, end mnvp tn strfkP it, 

it UD, 

it UD from t~P t•x officP, 

A From mf", 

THE MASTER: Th .. nb1f"eti on i. !I nv~rrulPd. 

MR. MITCHELL: Jud~~. I !!imnly mis-

I hPerd him 111ey 

{ t UD, 

THE MASTER: Atl ri~ht. 

MR. MITCHELL: May I hev~ thP vitn~s!! 

I •• not •bt~ tohPitr • lot of hiR 
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answ~rc:. 

2 THE WITNESS: I am c;orry. 

3 MR. MITCHELL: That ts th~ re11~on that 

4 I ,uc:t stmnly dldn't h~11r 

5 him !lAY from hPr OP'E'!':Onltlly. 

6 THE MASTER: Yes. 

7 Q ('By Mr. Od11m:) Mr. R11mtro C8rr-f1ln n-fcked Ul) th~ 

8 ~nvoicp from you 11t th~ til~ nfftc~? 

9 A YP"', !"ir. 

10 Can you 

II dpc;cr{bp that for tht Court? 

12 A Y~c:. !!1.r, th11t 'sa cheock from Duval County mad~ 

13 in theo amount nf onP thou8and p{~ht~~n dollars, 

14 clAim numbPr D7~. 

15 Q All ri~ht, a,d i.t is admitt~d into eovidenceo, 

16 E-96, 11nd ~~~n you I'll ask you if you cAn 

17 tdeonttfy th11t. 

18 A That is the cl11i.m iackPt, D-75. 

19 

20 

21 

23 

24 

25 

MR. ODAM: And as thP Court reocallc: 

fun the !'lti.nulation on Mr. Meeok's testi.-

mony, E-96 was th~ cl11im ;ackf"t and D-75 

thP contents sttoulation was contents was 

E-95, wh1ch wac: the invnicP and now we move 

the ·chPck, E-96, thP ort~ina1 cooy of whic~ 

is tn tl-tat ho~. 
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Q Nnw, th~ ch~ck for on~ t~oussnd and ~t~ht~~n dollar. 

madf.' out 

to B~navidf.'R Im~lPment and H~rrlwarP iq E-97, can 

vnu tdf.'ntify that? 

MR. ODAM: W~ll. qtrik~ that. 

Q On E-97 aft~r you -- di.d you rPcei vp th"" nri~dnal 

CO'DY of E-97? 

A YPq, qfr. 

0 And what dfd yru dn with E-97? 

A I denosited it ~t the bank in Rio Grand~ City, 

~Hr. 

Q Why did you df.'nosit it in the Rfo Grande City 

bank? 

A I don't recall what date we onf.'nf.'d an account, 

hut 0. P. came by Rnd told me that he mad~ 

arran~f.'ment!'l f~r mf.' to O'Of.'n an ~ccount ~t thf.' 

Rio Grand~ Bank and Trust Com~any and h~ brou,ht 

checks out of that account. 

Q And why did h~ want you to on~n an account at 

the -- or why waR it on~npd at the Rio Grandf.' 

C{ty Bank? 

A So that we could nay thf.' Cat~r~ill~r~ from that 

-
account, from th~ Rio grand~ Bank and to keen it 

seoaratf.' from thP store tn BPnavtde~. 
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Q And what w~~ the -- could you e~n18in to the 

or leased, which wP will ~et to tn a moment. 

Wh8t wa~ thP ourno~P for t~e Caterntllar~? 

A He needed tn clear some land nn dP r~nch, sir. 

Q Were thP C~teroil1ar~ to be u~ed for the county? 

A No, ~dr. 

Q For what 0uroo~P were they intended to be use~~ 

A For his own oersnnal use, sir. 

0 All ri!!ht. 

MR. MITCHELL: That would be hearsay 

to this witness, he doesn't knnw what they 

were for, Your Honor. We submit it ie out-

side of his nPrsonal knowled~e. 

THE MASTER: What f.s the ba~d s of your 

knowled~e with resoect to that, Mr. Coulln~? 

A Mr. 0. P. Carrillo told mP hi.m!'!elf. 

THE MASTER: Ob1ectlon ~~ overruled. 

MR. MITCHELL: Note our PYCentton, Jud~e. 

Q But I take it that the aooearance was, with 

reRoect to thi~ county ticket, or corrPctton, 

,.,{ th resnttct to E-95, that the county was nayinJ". 

for tho~tt bulldo~ers? 

A Yf!'s, sir. 

0 Or Cateroillar~? 
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MR. MITC'-!ELL: That "-•ou1~ bP !-tPifr!':ay, 

Jud~e. nn~ we move to !':trike it nnd nb1ect. 

MR, ODAM: Well, trt me renhrn~e the 

5 ouest{ on. 

6 THE MASTER: All ri~ht. 

7 Q E-95, can you Identify n~ntn whnt is ~tatPd on 

8 E-95? 

9 A Ye~. ~tr, tt ~tates rent on w~nch truck, on 

10 l.<d nch number ? truck 11nd dumo number 10 truck. 

II Q And why wa~ -- why di~ you I think we covere~ 

12 t"t8t earU er. Why did you out t!-tst information 

13 nn E-95? 

14 A WP had to put some ki.nd of information so WP 

15 could ~et the money from the county, sir. 

16 0 So ynu could ~et this check l~sued? 

17 A Yes, c:ir. 

18 0 Which went into the Rio ~rande City nccount? 

19 A Yes, "'i.r. 

20 0 After the check went into thP Rio Grande City 

21 account, what ~Pnerally haooenPd after th8t with 

22 rPsoect to the Rio Cr~tnde City account? 

23 A The checks wP.rP mndr to Pl~ti.ns Mach i.nery herr 

24 in Cornu~ Christi. f~nayment nn the DR Trsctor~. 

25 Q Who made out t'"lns, checks -- t••ho made thos P chrcks 

·---t1f--------------------------- ··--·-·-·-· ··-
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MR. ODAM: Your Honor, if I recall thP 

~tntu~ of the recor~. the {nvo{reR ~htrh 

have been filled out by Mr. Gon?alez. 

Thi~ now ts a tickPt filled out by 

Mr. Coultnr- and SA I under~tnod. the offer 

thus far wA r simoly for nurno~e~ of ~how-

tnr tt was In the ,acket and I would offer 

now E-95, which Mr. Coulinp te~tifted that 

he filled out fo: the ourno~e~ nf hi~ teRti-

mony, authenticity of what thiA document 1s, 

not only was •t In the 1arket, but as Mr. 

Gonzalez testified that he filled out the 

ticket In all of his testimony with resnect 

to the filling out of this ticket. 

MR, ODAM: And my ob1ections would 

be only then, Your Honor. as to the hearsay 

and the bastr ob,ectfons which we had arevi-

ously. 

THE 'fASTER: Wrll, but 9') i_s now --

Mr. Odam, 95 waR nrev1ouAJy admitted as A 

document in the jacket. It hqA efmnly been 

further ide~tified now. 

MR. ODAM: Yes, "' r. 
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1 flll 

MR. ODAM: Your Honor. if tt l~ sll 

1.ight ,.d_th Mr. MltchPll, I t.>ould i.ms~fnf' thAt 

tP~t1mony todl'ly on dirf'ct and cro~s. I 

thtnk thAt i~ nrobably a fatr assumotfon. 

MR. MITCHELL: YPs. 

MR. ODAM: Mr. Rf'd Kurt? i~ standing 

outsfdp with Ptains MachinE-ry l'lnd if {t 

would be All rfr~t with Arthur, I hatP to 

~ontinup to intE'rrunt Mr. Coultng 1 s tPsti-

mony, but i.t m{P-ht be sn Annronr'stE' nlacp 

to takP him hack off thP stand And ppt Mr. 

Kurtr fn. I ~ate to hsvP wftnf'~SPS ~tandin~ 

around. Is thAt all rfgl,t ,.,~th vou, Arthur' 

MR. MITCHELL: That t~ nf'rfPC'tly all 

right. 

MR. ODAM: Also, Mr. Kurtr. has to hf' 

fn Houston tomorrow. 

THE ~STER: All right. Mr. Coulin~. 

we w4 11 hsvP to imnose on you again. You 

MR. MITCHELL: Thf' only :c:tfoulatton t:c: 

thst somethinp that hP tE'stffipd to Is a 
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PXAmfn~tf.on, I know it fA twPlvP-thirty and 

I know thP Court'A workfn~ ~chPdulP, but {f 

l woulrl iurH havE' "'r~r;rht to cAll him b1tck 

lit 1'1 futurP lil'lte. 

T:m MASTER: Absolutt'ly. we woul<'ln' t 

But I wAnt Mr. O~~tm back fn 

(Dt~cussfon off thp rPcord.) 

THE MASTER: Mr. Kurt~. comp uo nlP.~t~P 

and be R'lo•orn. 

MR. ALBERT KURTZ, 

r~tllPd ~~~ "'wf.tnP!'Hl, h.!ivlng been fir~t duly sworn, 

tpstffipd unon hfR oath as followi'l, tn-l>>ft: 

EXA,tl!!!!.!!Q!! 

BY MR, ODAM: 

THE MASTER: And let thP rPcord rpflPct 

th11t you sreo --

MR. AUFORTH: I l'lm FrPd Auforth, Your 

Honor, l'ln<'l I 111m Mr. Kurt~·~ attornPy. 

THE MASTER: And t 1<•ant t\1P rrcord t<' 
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ob1Prt{on to ~-~~ be{np uresent. 

MR. MITCHELL: Oh, nn, Your Honor. 

THE MASTER: HAve a seat right here, 

,, Nt!'IP. 

Q (By Mr. Odam:) Would you ~1ea~e stste your nAmP 

for thE' rPrord. 

A Albf'rt Kurt,.. 

Q Mr. Kurt,., how do you sne11 your 1Ast name? 

A K-U-R-T-Z. 

Q H~ve wP met nrior to this morntnF? 

A No. ~dr. 

0 I think I Informed you that your n8mf' i~ the 

Anyway, we have never mPt nrior to thts 

morn-In$!? 

A No, sir. 

----------·----·-----
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Q By whom'are you employed? 

2 A Plains Machinery >ompany. 

3 Q Where is that located? 

4 A The main office is in Amarillo, Texas. 

s Q Mr. Kurtz, you stated the main offices are in 

6 Amarillo? 

7 A Yes. 

s Q Do you know whether or not Plains Machinery has 

9 offices in Corpus Christi, Texas? 

10 A Yes, we do. 

11 Q Are you employed heJ. _ in Corpus Christi? 

12 A Yes. 

13 Q What is your position with Platns Machinery? 

14 A Store manager with the Corpus Christi store. 

15 Q And how long have you been employed with Plains 

16 Machinery? 

17 A Since 1971. 

U Q Where did you work prior to that time? 

~ A Jess McNeil Machinery Company. 

~ Q What are your duties generally as store manager 

21 with Pldns Machinery? 

22 A Over-all management c:£ the store, sales and service, 

23 parts and so forth. 

u Q Do you know Judge o. P. Carrillo? 

2S A Yes. 

·----11---------------------------------· ----- T 
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1815 

Q Do you identify him as being present here in the 

courtroom today? 

A Yes. 

Q I don•t Know you pr~iously and it should be stated 

to you that these proceedings are confidential and 

the statements I make to you and the statements 

you make here today should remain confidential and 

you should not discuss your testimony you gave here 

today with anyone. It should remain inside this 

room until it becomes public, if at all, do you 

understand that? 

A Yes, sir. 

~ The store you work for, Plains Machinery C~mpany, 

what type machinery is that? 

A Construction machinery, road building equipment. 

Q Could you be more specific as to types? 

A Bulldozers, draglines, dirt moving equipment, 

cranes, heavy lifting cranes. 

Q Is a Caterpillar, is that a particular brand name? 

A Yes, there is a brand name called Caterpillar. 

Q What is that? 

A It is a crawler type of dozer to move dirt, brush, 

or whatever. 

Q So when you refer to a Caterpillar, that word could 

be used interchangeably with dozer? 
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A Yes. 

1816 t 
2 Q But there is a brand name called a Caterpillar 

3 tractor? 

4 A Yes. 

s Q You stated earlier you know J~e o. P. Carrillo. 

6 Could you please state the basis for your knowledge 

7 of o. P. Carrillo? 

8 A Well, of course --

9 Q Strike that. Let me be specific. 

10 Did Judge o. P. Carrillo, who you identified 

11 here as being in the ~ourtroom, did he come into 

12 .Plains Machinery to see you on business? 

~ A The only time was when he purchased these tractors. 

H Q At the time Judge 0. P. Carrillo came into the 

IS store, was there anyone else with o. P. Carrillo 

16 a t that time? 

~ A There may have been one or two others, sir. 

18 I think there was one or two others, but I could 

19 not identify them. 

~ Q At the time he came into the store, this was in 

21 Corpus Christi? 

22 A Yes. 

23 Q Can you recall generally wm t ttme -- give us a 

24 date as to what year that was, first of all? 

25 A '73. 
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Q Several years ago? 

2 A Well, approximately at the time of those contracts, 

3 the date of those contracts. 

4 Q We will get into that in a minute, but around the 

5 date of the contracts we will get into? 

6 A Yes. 

1 Q And Judge 0. P. Carrillo came in to see you at that 

8 time, do you recall the general nature of the 

9 conversation you had with him at that time? 

10 A It was pertaining to some equipment he wanted to 

II purchase, some equipwJnt for his own use. 

12 Q Did he specifically say to you it was for his own 

13 use? 

14 A Yes. 

15 Q Did he say it was for the use of the county? 

16 A No, str. 

17 Q Did he say 

18 MR. MITCHELL: Excuse me, objection as 

19 to leading. 

20 MR. ODAM: I will rephrase the question. 

21 Q (By Mr. Odam:) When Judge o. P. Carrillo came to 

22 see you, at that time, could you state whether or 

23 not if he indicated it was for personal use or for 

24 county use? 

~ A Personal use. 

----1+------------------------ r 
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Q And he made that statement to you? 

2 A Yes, he said he l'Bn ted to clear some land. 

3 Q Now, the equipment -- you generally talk about 

what when you got down to the models and could you 

5 describe to me what you agreed upon with Judge 

6 
Carrillo? 

7 A It was two dozers we had there in stock and I think 

8 the Judge came in specifically talking about those 

9 two tractors. 

10 Q Now, after he came in and talked to you about those 

11 dozers, are these Cn 9rpillars? 

12 A Yes, sir. 

13 Q What next took place with respect to those 

transactions? 

IS A Well, it was twice he came in, possibly. He 

16 
definitely made up his mind he wanted them and 

17 asked us to get them ready, which we did, to 

18 deliver to him. 

19 Q And who prepared getting the tractors ready? 

zo A My service departm~nt. 

n Q Are there any name3 of anyone specifically there 

22 in the service dep~rtment? 

23 A That I don't remember at this time. It was our 

24 service people, probably two or three different 

25. individuals. 

----H---------------------------- -r-
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Q I guess you were talking about loading? 

2 A Yes, getting them ready and servicing the 

3 equipment. It is quite a bit involved in~tting 

4 them ready to get delivered. 

s Q Once the tractors or Caterpillars were prepared, 

6 what next happened to them? 

7 A Well, they were taken to Benavide~, Texas. 

8 Q Where, if you know -- could you state where they 

9 were taken? 

W A we instructed our people to take them to his land, 

11 to Benavides, with inatruct1ons to the hauling 

12 contractor. 

13 Q Who was that? 

~ A o. R. Hale Trucking Company. 

15 Q You did not take them yourself? 

16 A No, sir, 

17 Q And I presume this o. R. Hale Truckl.ng Company dl.d 

18 take them over? 

19 A Yes. 

~ Q Took them to Judge Carrillo's ranch? 

~ A Yes, he took them over to -- where we were asked 

22 

23 

24 

25 

to deliver them. Those instructions were gl.ven 

to my service people. 

Q How did you know where they were supposed to be 

delivered? 
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A Judge Carrillo -- it maybe was one of his people 

2 that worked for him, because I can't state the 

3 Judge stated specifically where to take them and 

4 be sure. 

s Q All right. Would you please speak in the 

6 microphone so we can all hear your testimony? 

7 A Yes. 

n 
e Q Now, Mr. ~ale's trucking comrany took them to the 

9 ranch? 

10 A Yes. 

11 Q Did you, yourself, e,1r make a trip to Benavides? 

12 A Yes. 

m Q What was your purpose for going to Benavides? 

14 A I took a contract for him to sign. 

15 Q To whom did you take a contract? 

16 A Mr. Couling. 

17 Q Rudolfo Couling? 

18 A Yes. 

18 .~ Have you seen him in the area of the courtroom 

20 today? 

21 A No, sir. 

22 Q You took a contract to Mr. Rudolfo Couli.ng for 

these Caterpillars? 

~ A Yes, sir. 

D Q What d1d he do with the contract? 
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Q 

A 

He signed them. 

Then what happened to the contracts? 

I took them back to Corpus Christi and they 

signed by the president of the company. 

Q Who is that? 

P ward Harrell, or he was at the time. 

MR. ODAM: Would you mark this? 

(The above-mentioced document was 

were 

marked Examiner's Exhibit 159 for identifi-
10 

cation.) 
II 

12 Q I show you what has been marked as E-159 and ask 

13 you if you can identify this piece of paper? 

14 A Yes. 

u Q Could you describe for the court what this is? 

~ A It is a financing statement we filed with the State 

17 of Texas on equipment we sell_ or all rentals. 

18 Q Who filled out this financing statement? 

~ A Mr. Harrell. Well, our secretary typed it out and 

20 Mr. Harrell signed it. 

21 Q .And that ts Ward Harre 11 1 s signature 7 

22 A Yes. 

~ Q Would you be able to identify that signature? 

24 .A Yes. 

~ Q What is this other signature? 

---41----------------------~--~- ~~ ~---
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A Mr. Couling. 

2 Q And this is for a financing of the two Caterpillars 

3 A Yes, any contract or chattel mortgage we make in 

4 

5 

6 

7 

our firm, we file them with the State Of Texas, 

regardless of whether it is lease contracts or 

chattel mortgage contracts. This is a filing 

instrument on a lease contract. 

8 Q Now, the debtor on this would be whom? 

9 A Benavides Implement and Hardware. 

10 Q And it was signed by Mr. Rudolfo Couling for that 

II C'Ompany? 

12 A Yes. 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

24 

25 

MR. ODAM: We offer in evidence the copy 

of the financing statement. 

MR. MITCHELL: We object on the grounds 

to this respondent that it would be hearsay 

and beyond the scope of the formal notice 

along with the previous objections allowed 

by the Master. 

THE MASTER: Your objections are 

overruled and Exhibit 159 is admitted. 

MR. ODAM: Mark this, please. 

(The above-mentioned document was 

marked Examiner's Exhibit 160 for 

--ll-------=-id=..e:..:n::...::..t 1:::f:.:1=-c=-a=-t.:...i.:...o:....:n.:...·~)!.._ ________________ _ 
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Mr. Kurtz, I ask you if you can identify what 

been marked as E-1607 

A Yes, this is the original lease agreement on those 

two tractors. 

Q All right. Can you identify that fully as to what 

E-160 is l 

A The leasd agreement between Benav'des Implement 

and Hardware and Plains Machinery concerning the 

two tractors we have discussed. 

Q All right. And this is signed by what parties, 

Mr. Kurtz? 

A Benavides Implement and Hardware, by R. M. Couling, 

and Plains Machinery by Ward M. Harrell. 

Q. And it states the owner of the Caterpillars are 

Benavides Implement and Hardware? 

A Yes. 

Q And can you identify this as being Mr. Harrell's 

signature? 

A Yes. 

Q Could you describe the other documents attached 

to it? Is this a part of the lease agreement, also? 

I believe the items that you were looking at there 

is a copy? 

A Yes, this is a copy of the UCC-1. 

The filing statement Just introduced? 
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A Yes. 

2 Q What is this? 

3 A This is a recap sheet outlining the selling price 

4 and insurance and interest for the term of the 

5 contract, 

s Q Who prepared that paper that you are looking at 

7 there? 

8 A Mr. Harrell had the secretary type it, he signed 

9 it. 

10 Q And the next page? 

II A This is the insuranctj covering these two crawler 

12 tractors, insurance policies. 

13 Q To Benavides Implement and Hardware? 

14 A Yes, and signed by Mr. Harrell. 

IS Q And finally, could you describe the last item? 

~ A That is an invoice to Benavides Implement and 

17 Hardware, 

18 MR. MITCHELL: Are we on a separate 

19 exhibit? 

20 THE MASTER: It is all ~60, 

21 THE WITNESS: This is our invoice for 

the two tractors. 

~ Q And this is a copy of the invoice you would keep 

24 in your files at Plains Machinery? 

25 A Yes, 

----1:t-----------------------------
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Q And the final page is what? 

2 A That is the invoice covering the amount of the 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

IS 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

23 

24. 

25 

I. ,. 

insurance. 

MR. ODAM: We would offer in evidence 

the equipment and lease agreement on the 

Caterpillar tractor in question. 

MR. MITCHELL: Our objP.ction would be, 

irrelevant and immaterial, beyond the scope 

of the specifications in the amended or 

original notice of hearing and as to this 

client would u~ a question of surprise as 

to the relevancy of a lease between 

Benavides Implement and Hardware ar.d Plains 

Machinery Company. We have no notice of 

relevancy of it, 

THE NASTER: Your objec t1.on is overruled 

and Exhibit E-160 is admitted. 

MR. ODAM: I believe we have no further 

questions of this witness, Your Honor. 

MR. MITCHELL: May I have just one 

minute? 

THE MASTER: Yes, sir. 
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2 
BY MR. MITCHELL: 

3 

Q Mr. Kurtz, my name is Arthur Mitchell, and I 

5 represent J~dge Carrillo. I have not visited 

6 with you or met you before, have I? 

7 A No, sir. 

8 

9 

JD 

II 

12 

13 

14 

IS 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

24 

25 

MR. MITCHELL: May I have marked, 

please, Mr. Reporter, these three documents. 

(The above-mentioned documents were 

marked as Respondent's Exhibit 50 for 

identification.} 

MR. MITCHELL: May we also have these 

marked. 

(The ebove-mentioned documents were 

marked as Respondent's Exhibits 51, 52, 53, 

and 54 for identification.) 

---------- T-
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rel~tinp to thP DR Cat tractor 16Al417 

A Yf'F.. 

Q Am I correct? 

A YPs, ~ir. 

Q And thP ~n~ thAt you have t~ld u~ about t~ onP 

that occurred between your comnAnv. t~e Plains 

M~chinery Com~8ny and the BenavirlPs Imolement and 

Hardware Comn8ny which occurrPd at the latter nart, 

Rccord~n~ to thP document~. E-160, of 1972, and 

beforP you 8nswer tt t, out of fairness to you, 

A Please. 

0 -- hand you the EYhlbit 160, and 159. y..,u mAy 

refPr to tho~e. n1P8Se, s~r. ~f nePd be, to 

rPfresh your recollection. 

A That is correct. 

Q YPs, and thPy anne8r to be 8n installment ~ales 

C'ontra<."t from Pl~tin!'l Machinerv C~m~11ny "''ith thP 

su~~ortin~ documantation for the sale of DR Cat 

tractor and I believe the desi~natlon ls 16A14~. 

am I <."orrect" 

A Yes. 

UIATilAM & 1\SSO( IATf:S 
COURT REPORTE.R5 

717 ANlELOPE • GUARANTY BANK PLAZA 
CORPU$ CHRISTl, TEXAS "7840, 

~-



2 

3 

4 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 ' 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

. I. 

1R2~ . 
Q Ancl 'l.6A470? 

A YNl, ~ir. 

Q All rf~ht, ~fr. Now, ~o you h~vp a r~cor~ of 

H~trclt .. art> to t"tP Pl 11in:c: Macl-tinPry Comnany on account i 

of thP oblt,~ttons aristn~ out of t"tf~ sale at 

t"tr t~ttl rnd of 1974? 

TJ.tE MASTER: You ~11i.cl tlti l ton~ of 74. 

MR. MITCHLL: YP~. ~ir, thp DPct>mb~r. 

74 contract fn or~Pr to ~fstfn~ui~h it, ont> 

that or.currt>d at 11 latPr dlttP, Your Honor. 

THE MASTER: All ri~ht. 

A Now, wp have, our records, our lPd•er sh~Pt shows 

t"tP oaymt>nts we rt>ceivP~ from Bt>navidt>~ Hsrdware 

and ImnlPmPnt. 

Q Now. isn't it 11 fact thst 11 ye11r or ~o later, 

bt>l~e thllt your comoany undertook to fort>clost>? 

A Yes, Wf' hi!IVP. 

Q And thf'n, I wi 11 h11nd you now "''hl!lt hils been mttrkt>d 

~t:c: R-50 cnnstttutin~ thrPt> o11~es or three docu-

ments, the ~ecurrty tt~retoment, conditional salt>s 

thoRP documents. Do you r~co•nizp thf'm, Mr. Kurt~? 
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1879 

A Y~s. I reco~ni~e thPm. 

0 Now, the d~cument~ reflected, I belfeve, tn your 

E~hibit number 50, ~~near to be between PlAfn~ 

Imolf'mf"nt Comoany, your comtHtny, And JuclP-e o. P. 

Carrillo? 

0 And Are they not, from lookinP- ,.t them, &P-ree• 

ment~ whereby Jud~e Carrillo nurc~a~eq the same 

tractors that were orevtously ~old to Benavides 

Imolement And HArdware at the tall end nf 1974, 

the tdentiral Cateroi1larA? 

A Ye~. they are the ~ame tractor~. 

Q Jud~e Carrillo, at the time that F~hibit 50 is 

indicated, cAmP in and ourchased tho~e same 

had he not, or took over the contract on them? 

A Took over the contract, ye~. sir. 

n And oaid down, I believe, some 

the figure, how much money did he oay down at 

that time, Mr. Kurt~. I'm talkfn~ about now at 

the time he rAmP In there under --

A WPll, the contract was reduced to the selling 

orice of nineteen thousand slx hundred and eighty-

Sf'Ven dollars, wl·dc; did not i.nc1udP any tntK"est. 

But -- had it reduced to anoroximately that 
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3 t'f.mt> thl!lt R--

4 MR. MITCHELL: WPll, ~trikP t~8 t, I 

wl!lnt to bf' ~ure. 

6 Q R-50, you rt>coent~P your s{gnaturP on thl!lt? 

A Yf'S. 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

MR. MITCHELL: Your Honor, we would 

lfkP to offf'r R-30, if wf' m'~~t At t~i~ 

timf', ft would be RP~oondf'nt'~ R-50. 

MR. ODAM: Your Honor, '·'f' would h&VP no 

objpctfon to thf' offpr of R-50 and tl!lkt> by 

~~ecificat'on number 1?. 

MR. MITCHELL: No, it ""'ul~ not, Your 

Honor. Thf' fAct of tht> m11ttf'r is I di~ not 

rt>ason of a n1f'R of 8 surnri~f' wl!ls I knt>w 

Wf' had a contr&ct for thf' ourchR~t> of thosP 

by thP documf'nts, t~erP is no fntf'r-rf'lAtion~. 

THF. MASTER: Thf' E7hihit is l!ldmittt>rl. 
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Q All rtpht, nnw at the t1mr th~ rontr~ct R-50 was 

~nterPd into between Jud~e Carrillo and your 

como11ny, I hel we he ~ltv~ 11 rh~ck, di_d hP not, 

and I wfll hand vnu R-52 th11t you may refresh 

your recollection nf s{y thous11nd dollars to 

Plsins. 

check, ~~ethPr that check was ~tven in connection 

wit'ft R-50, {f you knoT<•, Mr. Kurt,.. Do you know? 

A Yf>S. 

Q All right. 

A YPs, tt was. 

Q All rl~ht, now, from the date of R-50, which 

aooesrs to bP. May of 1976, Jud~~ Carrillo hss 

has Judgf> Carrillo caused to be ostd to your 

cnmoany thP oaym~nt called for in thf> document 

R-50? 

A He has, 'V't'C'S. 

MR. MITCHELL: I 10uld 1 i_ke to offer at 

thts tfmf> R-52 which thf> witness tdf>ntfffpd 

as being the check ~iven cnntf>mooraneous to 

R-50. 

MR. ODAM: No ,.,b1E'ctton to R-52. 

THE MAS'IER: Admitted. 

Q I'll hsnd you R-51, R-51 and R-56 and ask you, 
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they ~~~ear to he checks ~i.ven to your comoany 

on account of the ourchase of the Caternillars 

reflected in R-50 for the various months since 

A Yes. they arP oaymentson this document here, thfs 

6 contract. 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

IS 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

0 And R-50 'f.~ an tt~reement si~ned by Judge Carri.llo 

i.ndi.vidually w'f th your com~ttny? 

A YPS. 

Q And the checks ~iven and introduced ~s R-52, 51, 

51 and 54 are checks glven by ~dge Cttrrillo a~~ar-

ently relatfng to the ourchase contract, R-50? 

A Yes, it is. 

Q All ri~ht, now the -- let me ask you ~bout 160. 

THE ~STER: What i.s the date of 160? 

MR. MITCHELL: Your Honor, the date is 

December 14th, 1972. 

THE MASTER: A 11 rf.~ht. You refer to 

it as a late 1974 transaction and that is 

when I tnterruoted. 

MR. MITHELL: And Jud~e. you are correct, 

I meant late 1972. The Judge is correct and 

may I, at this time, have the record corrected 

Your Honor, to reflect that E-t60 was not 

a late 74 but a late 72 a~reement? 
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THE MASTER: YP~, ~ir, 

MR. MITCHELL: Thank ynu, Ynur Honor. 

Q {By Mr. Mitch~lL:) W~~ the ~ecurtty egreem~nt and 

thP £1nancing document, if you know, as shown tn 

E-160, wer~ t~~y r~lea~ed at the timP of thP con-

tracting a~reemPnt of R-50, at the timP it was 

~7ecuted, do you know1 

A WPll, I ju9t 

Q ThPy 11nuear to b~ on the same "i~cP of eftui.oment 

ftnd E-50 might be, if I mi~ht describ~ it for you, 

for you recollection to en~wer my "uestion, E-50 

has 11 security agreement on file, Pl~ins Machinery 

by yourself and Jud~e Catr'-llo h thP debtor, 

A Which one is thi91 

Q This {q the --

Q Yes, R-50 i~ the May of 74. 

A This mey not have been released, I think this 

one hee been released. 

Q All ri~ht, and -by this one, for the record, you 

arP referring to the old agreement? 

A The old agreement. 

Q In R-1601 

A E-160. 

' 

Q All ri~ht, you are rt~ht, it is -- I qtand corrected, 
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24 

tt Is E-160, you are rt~ht. 

All ri.~ht. nl:'w 

MR. MITCHELL: Str~ke that, may I have 

1ust a ~econrl, Your Honor~ 

(Dt~cussion off the record.) 

Q May I ask you, not necessarily from the nuroose 

nf tomorrow, I understand you have a commitment, 

would you mind e7amtnin~ your record~ when you are 

e7cused by the court to ~et, tf there are other 

checks 0 aid by Jud~e Carrillo tn the Plains 

Machinery Comoany on the contract, that have now 

been introduce~ by this Court as R number 50, if 

we dmt have them all here, my client --

THE MASTER: He wout~n't have the checks ,I 
I 

wHl he, Mr. M-ttchell ~ 

MR. MITCHE~~:Evi.dentty, he r.•l 11 have th4>m, 

THE MASTER: If he 1'1'19 ne~nt 1.ated them. 

MR. MITCHELL: HP wttl have the nayment!! 

of the checks, Your Honor. My client informs 

me, Your H~nor. we don't have some of the 

or1.~in~~t1B, they li.kewi.se hAve been scatterf'CI 

out and I ~ould like to reftuest of this wtt-

ness tf he has some record nf payments that 

oerh~tos 1.s more accurately reflected by the 
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r@eords, t~en I hav@ reflPcted by t~e cheeks 

orndue•d. 

THS WITNESS: Mr. Mitchell, now, when 

we receive • ch@ek such as thta --

THE WITNESS: WP have a cash d@ooait 

where we deoosit t~at check in our bank. 

Q I understand • 

A Now, I can have my sec~ary ~o back and --

Q And cheek that? 

A Gtve you the dates o: our deoosita. 

Q All ri~ht. A,. a matter of fact, my client i.nforms 

m@ -- aaybe your recollection serves you as it 

serves him, and that is that there ts som@ owed 

on it right now, I belieV@ about three thousand 

A lB. there is the balance on this contract • 

MR. MITCHELL: I would aoorectate if 

the Court has no objection, and by reauestin~ 

you to make inauiry of your secretary to 

make sure we ~ave for the r@cord all of the 

oay•enta made by Jud~e Carrillo to your com-

0 any, oursuant tn the contract that has been 

introduced as E•50, that would be sent 

May of 1972. 
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THE MASTER: R-50. 

Do you under~tand my au~stion? 

Y~s. I understand t~e auestton. 

MR. ODAM: Your Honor, on that ~oint 

we have no oh1ecti"n to thP introduction of 

thes~ cheeks that are bebre th~ witness 

ri~ht now, the8e cheeks evi~enee the ~ayment 

made on the Cater~illar by Ju~~e o. P. 

Carrillo. 

We would object to the introduction et 

a later time by Mr. Kurtz of his record. 

As Mr. Mitchell well knows, the best 

evidence would be the ~ayment, the checks 

themselvPs, and if Jud~e 0. P. Carrillo wants 

to take the stand and testify as tn the 

unavilability of those ori~inal cheeks snd 

~reserve that, to get around the best evi-

dene• rule, that could be met, but our obj~c-

tion would be on thP ~rounds of best evidence 

because the best evidene~ is thos~ehecks 

which Mr. Kurtz is lookin~ at ri~ht now. 

THE MASTER: But Mister -- I don't know 

that hi.s records show who made the ~ayments, 

but his records that ~•yment8 have been made 

are admissible evidence. 
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2 trouble tryin~ to work around the witness' 

3 schedule. We have the checks, but we are 

' not ~reoared for thfs witness. 

s The Jud~e has ~ot to ~o back to his 

8 home toni~ht and otck them up. He can brin~ 

7 them, but I understand this ~entlemen wants 

8 to be out of town tomorrow and I didn't want 

9 t~ call him baek and, of course, the hour 

IIJ is late and I didn't want to skirt the best 

11 evidence rule l!li.. ~ dtdn' t intend to. 

12 If I ean have an understanding that we 

13 will .1ust eall him back, we will have the 

oriRinals to authenticate and introduce. 

IS THE MASTER: That may or may not be 

18 necessary. Get the cheeks uo here and ~tve 

I? them to Counsel and see. 

II MR. MITCHELL: WPll, Mhter •• I am 

sorry, Judge. 

;110 Q Mr. Kurtz, you do know Jud~e C~trrillo has oaid 

11 

.13 

those, that he has oaid on his personal aeeount 

as indicated by some of those cheeks? 

MR. MITCHELL: I have no fu~ther ques· 

tiona of this witness, Jud~e Meyer. 

MR. ODAM: We would -- we have no 
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furth~r au~stinns of thf~ wttn~se, Your 

Honor. 

THE MASTER: Thank you, Mr. Kurtr., you 

art" f'XCUS~d. 

THE WITNESS: Thank you. 

THE MASTER: Mr, Mitchell, you did not 

offer 51 and 53, if you did, I do not havP 

i.t not~d. 

MR. AUFORTH: Your Honor, may the wtt-

ness be excused from any ~ubnoena that hP 

may b~ under fo~ hi.m to leave tomorrow? 

THE MASTER: Y~s. he ts. 

MR. AUFORTH: Thank you. 

(Dtscussion off the record.) 

MR.' ODAM: We have no oh1ection to 

R-51 and 53. 

MR. MITCHELL: I am sorry, it is R•54, 

John. 

MR. ODAM: I hAve no ob1eetion tn the 

ori~inal cony of these chf'cks. 

MR. MITCHELL: And, Your Honor, I want 

to call thf' Court's attention that some of 

them like thfs, like this one on R-54 is for 

two ,aymentfl. In other words, John, di.d you 
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not~ that, that some of them ~re for two 
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MR. ODAM: Yes,sir. 

MR. MITCHELL: And we would like to 

have ~ermts~ton of the Court to withdraw the 

or{,;i.n~tls at s.u,c~,t-i..nt~ as Counsel has had an 
(_ ....... i.. .: J 

oo~ortuntty to examine thPm nr tn cross-
1 

e~aminP with them, with re~ard to them and 

substi.tutto c~J~f~;~ •that~ .. :~;~ mi~ht hav~ the 

ort~inals for our records, 

THE MASTER. Of cour~to. 

MR. MITCHELL: Thank you, Jud~e M~yers. 

THE MASTER: And I ,;uess we ou~ht to 

r~c~ss now until tomorrow morntntn~ at ei~ht 

thtrty. 

{Whereu~on the heartn~ was in recess 

from 1:10 ~.m., November 20th, 1975, untll 

R:~O a.m. on November 21st, 1975.) 
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